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FILE NO. 101575 RESOLUTION NO.

[Annual Reports - Fillmore Jazz Community Benefit Distric]

Reso!utzon regarding Flilmore Jazz Commumty Beneﬁt District annual reports to the

City: receiving and approving the Dlstnct's Annual Reports for District FYs

2007, 2008, and 2009, which.include the District's proposed budget for District FY2010,
as subm;tted pursuant to Section 36650 of the Business Property and Community
Benefit Act of 1994 (California Streets and Highways Code §§36600 et seq.) and Section

3.4 of the District's management contract with the City.

WHEREAS, on Juhé 27, 2006, pursuan’t to the Property and Community Benefit Law of
1994, California Streets and Highways Code Sections 36600 et seq. (the "Act’), as |
augmented by Article 15 of the San Francisco Business and Tax Regulations Code ("Art;cie
15", the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 389-06 “Resolution of Intention to form
the Fillmore Jazz Community Bene’r” t District (BID)” ("Resolution of Intention”); and,

WHEREAS, on August 15, 2008 the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution
No. 462-06 "Resolution to Establish the Fillmore Jazz Community Benefit District” (Resoiutton
to Estab!ish) for a period of 5 years commencing with fiscal year 2006-2007, with services
commencmg January 1, 2007 (BOS F|!e No. 061149); and,

WHEREAS on May 1, 2007 the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 219-07
“Contract with Owners' Association for Adminzstration of Fillmore Jazz Community Benefit
District” (BOS File No. 070465); now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors declares as fol!ows

I

"

Supervisor Mirkarimi _

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ' : Page 1
. 12114/2010
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“Section 1. RECEIPT AND APPROVAL OF THE FILLMORE JAZZ COMMUNITY
BENEFIT DISTRICT'S ANNUAL REPORTS TO THE CITY. |

The Board hereby receives and approves the Fillmore Jazz Community Benefit
District's Annual Reports for District Fiscal Years 2007, 2008, and 2009, which include the
District's proposed budget for D[Stl’!Ct Fiscal Year 201 0.

Supporting documents for these annual reports are on file with the Clerk of the Board
of Supervisors in File No. 101361, and include a fransmittal letter and memorandum report
from the City's Office of Economic and Workforce Development dated December 13, 2010,
and documentation from the Fillmore Jazz District Community'AssociationAof San Francisco.

These annual reports are submitted pursuant to Section 36650 of the Business

Property and Community Benefit Act of 1994 (California Streets and Highways Code §§36600
et seq.), and pursuant to Section 3.4 of the District's Management Contract with the City

- (i.e., Section 3.4 of the City's agreement/contract with the nonprofit propérty owners'

association Fillmore Jazz District Community Association of San Francisco for management

| and administration of the Fillmore Jazz Community Benefit District), which is on file with the

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors in File No. 070465 (re Resolution No. 219-07).

12/14/2010
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City and County of San Francisco :: Gavin Newsom, Mayor
Ecenomic and Workforce Development :: Michael Cohen, Director

Office of Economtc and Workfﬂrce Deve!opment

December 13, 2010

Supervisor Ross Mirlarimi

San Francisco Board of Supervisors

1 Dr. Cariton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244
San Francisco, Ca 94102-4689

Dear Supervisor Mirkarimi,

We are submitting this packet on the Fillmore Jazz District Community Benefit District (Fillmore CBD) for
your review. Per their contract with the City, we are requesting that you introduce a resolution to
approve the annual reports and financial statements of the Filimore CBD for FY 2007, FY 2008 and FY
2009 and their organizational budget for FY 2010. The Fillmore CBD operates on a Jan. 1 - Dec. 31 fiscal
year. We also ask that you schedule a public hearing through the appropriate cemm:ttee to take
testimony on the work of the CBD for the past three years.

Included in this packet: ‘
1) Draft resolution from the City Attorney :
2} Memo summarizing the accomplishments of the CBD
3) Summary and analysis of their financial statements
4) Annual Reports from FY 2007, FY 2008 and FY 2009
5) CPA Reviews for FY 2007, FY 2008 and FY 2009

. Pertheir contract with the City, Fillmore CBD is required to submit the following reports:
: 1) Mid-year report {due July 31%, on two quarters of work)
2} Annual Report {due January 31%, 30 days after the end of their fiscal year)
3} Unaueited Financial Statements and Budget for the following year (due }anuary 31St 30 days
after the end of fiscal year)
4) CPA Finahcial Review or Audit {due April 30™, 120 days after the end of fiscal year)

Fillmore CBD has complied with almost all of these requirements. They did not submit mid-year reports
for the past three years but have agreed to do so from now on. Attached please find a memo that
summarizes their accomplishments and challenges for the past three years and a summary and analysis
of their financial statements {based on their financial reviews), OEWD staff, with assistance from the
Controfler’s Office, reviewed these financial documents to monitor and report on whether they have
complied with the rules per the Property and Business Improvement District Law of 1994, California
Streets and Highways Code Sections 36600 Et Seq.; San Francisco’s Business and Tax Regufations Code
Article 15; the Fillmore CBD management contract with the City; and their Management Plan approved
by the Board of Supervisors in 2006. .

OEWD's staff report reviewed the following budget related benchmarks for Fillmore CBD:

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 448 San Francisco, CA 94102 | www.oewd.org

P 415.554.6969  f 415.554.6018



SAN '
EAaFRANCISCO

Office of Economic and Workforce Development

A

City and County of San Francisco : Gavin Newsom, Mayor
Economic and Workforee Davelopment :: Michael Cohen, Director (

1} Whether the variance between the budget amounts for each service category was within 10
percentage points from the budget of the previous fiscal year — Fiffmore CBD did not meet this
requirement for ail the fiscal years covered in this report. Table 1 on page 8 provides a
comparison of their annual budget per service category. The CBD’s 2010 proposed budget is in

’ line with their original Management Plan in all service categories.

2} Whether five percent of their income came from sources other than assessment revenue —
Fillmore CBD helped raise other funds that benefitted the CBD and the district. However, many of
these funds were not directly provided to the CBD and are not reflected in their annual CPA
Financial Review. Please see Table 2 on page 9 for more information.

3} Whether the variance between budget amount and actual expenses within a fiscal year was -
within 10 percent —This analysis is exploined on pages 5-7 of this report Please see Table 3 on

page 10.

- 4) Whether the annual budget indicates the amount of funds carried over from the previous fiscal
vear — Fillmore CBD met this requirement for ail the'fiscal years covered in this report. Please see

Tables 3 and 4 on pages 10 and 11..

5) Whether a spending plan for carryover funds was provided in the annual budget Fillmore CBD
_ met this requirement for all the fiscal years covered in this report. Please see Tables 32 and 4 on

pages 10 and 11,

The Board of Supervisors will need to vote on the attached resolution to apprové the 2007, 2008 and

2009 Fillmore CBD annual reports and financial statements as well as their organizational budget for
2010. Their 2010 annual report will not be due to OEWD until January 31, 2011 and their CPA Financial

TN

Review for FY 2010 will be due on Aprit 30, 2011. OEWD will come back to the Board of Superwsors next
year to request approval of the CBD’s work in FY 2010.

~ Please contact me anytime at 415-554-6936 for any questlons you may have about GUSBID or the

materials:we have provided.

Thank you for your continuing support of the Fillmore CBD We look forward to workmg wnth you

throughout this process.

Sincerely,

Lisa Pagan
Project Ma nager

OEWD Community Beneﬁt D:strsct/ Busmess !mprovement District

- Technical Assistance Program

1 Dr Carlton B. Gocdiett PEace, Room 448
' D 415. 554 6959

& San Franmsco CAgmoz | viww.oewd.org

f 415. 554 6018



MEMO

To: SF Board of Supervisors
From: Lisa Pagan and Trina Villanueva, OEWD
| RE: Fillmore Jazz District Community Benefit District

Date: December 13, 2010

The Fillmore Jazz District Cormmunity Benefit District (Fillmoie CBD} includes 303 parcels and is located
on Fillmore Street, bounded by Post Street, Webster Street, Golden Gate Avenue and Steiner Street. It
was formed in 2006 with the intention of promoting the district to visitors and locals as a premler
entertainment destination with top-notch restaurants.

The rhission of the Filimore‘CBD is to bring together property owners, businesses and residents to
enhance the Fillmore mixed-use commercial district. Activities include cleaning, streetscape
mprovements sidewalk maintenance, marketing and branding services,

Background
= On August 17, 2006, the Board ofSuperv:sors approved the establishment of the Fl!lmore Jazz

District Community Benefit District {(Resolution # 462-06).

¢ May 8, 2007, the Board approved the contract for the administration and management of the
district {Resolution # 219-07). -

» The CBD began receiving assessment funds following the executlon of their contract for
administration and management of the district and began providing services thereafter.

Basic Info about Fillmore Community Benefit District

Year Established — August 2006 _
Aésessments Collected —~ FY 2006-07 to FY 2010-2011 {July 1, 2006 — June 30, 2011} '
Services Start and End Date — January 1, 2007 — December 31, 2011

Initial Estimated Annual Budget - $327,488

Fiscal Year — January 1™ — December 317

Part-Time Executive Director — Jeff Eichenfield

Name of I\Eonproﬁt Entity ~ Fillmore Jazz District Community Assomataon of San Francisco

Each year the CBD is required to submit a mid-year report, an annual report and a CPA Financial Review
or Audit. Fillmore CBD has complied with almost all of these requirements. They did not submit mid- -
year reports for the past three years but have agreed to do so from now on. Attached please find a
memo that summarizes their accomplishments and challenges for the past three years and a summary
and analysis of their financial statements (based on their financial reviews). OEWD staff, with assistance
from the Contraoller’s Office, reviewed these financial documents to monitor and report on whether they
have complied with the rules per the Property and Business Improvement District. Law of 1994,
California Streets and Highways Code Sections 36600 Et Seq.; San Francisco’s Business and Tax
Regulations Code Article 15; the Fillmore CBD management contract with the City; and their
Management Plan approved by the Board of Supervisors in 2006.

OEWD's staff report reviewed the fo!lowing budget related benchmarks for Fi!lt;nore CBD:
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1) Whether the variance between the budget amounts for each service category was within 10
percentage points from the budget of the previous fiscal year — Fillmore CBD did not meet this
requirement for all the fiscal years covered in this report. Table 1 on page 8 provides a
comparison of their annual budget per service category. The CBD's 2010 proposed budget is in
line with their original Management Plan in all service categories.

2) Whether five percent of their income came fraom sources other than assessment revenue —
Fillmore CBD helped raise other funds that benefitted the CBD and the district. However, many of
these funds were not directly provided to the CBD and are not reflected in their annual CPA
Financial Review. Please see Table 2 on page 9 for more information.

3) Whether the variance between budget amount and actual expenses within a fiscal year was
within 10 percent —This analysis is explained on pages 5-7 of this report. Please see Table 3 on
page 10, ‘

4} Whether the annual budget indicates the amount of funds carried over from the previous fiscal
year - Fillmore CBD met this requirement for all the fiscal yedrs covered in this report Please see
Tables 3 and 4 on pages 10 and 11.

- 5) Whether a spending plan for carryover funds was prowded in the annuai budget — Fillmore CBD
met this requirement for all the fiscal years coveréd in this report. Please see Tables 3 and. 4 on
pages 10 and 11. :

Summary bf Accomplishments and Challenges 2006-2009

Sidewalk Operations, Beautification and Order {SOBG)

The Fillmore CBD’s Management Plan calls for about half of the budget to be spent in the Sidewalk
Operations, Beautification and Order service category. For the past three fiscal years (FY 2007, FY 2008
& FY 2009}, the CBD has spent the largest portion of their funds in this service category, compfymg with
their Management Plan.

Street Maintenance: ‘
The CBD originally contracted with CleanScapes to do the street cleaning, graffiti removal, trash removal

and maintenance for the district. This contract lasted for three fiscal years (FY 2007, FY 2008 & FY 2009).-
After conducting a Request for Qualifications {RFQ} process in November 2009, the CBD Board selected - .

GMG Janitorial Inc. to do the cleaning services including daily sidewalk sweeping, trash removal and

reporting to 311 Customer Service Center, weekly hot and cold power washing and twice-weekly graﬁ‘lta- .

removal. Their contract began in January 2010,

Beautification:

_For many years, one of the major complaints in the nmghborhood was the lack of lighting in the d:stnct '

The previous street lamps that were installed by the SF Redevelopment Agency on Fillmore Street did-

not illuminate the area enough and did not conform to DPW’s standards. Te help this situation, in 2008 .-

the CBD purchased and installed decorative strmg holiday lights along Flllmore Street from Post to

o Loy monsd Lk 2haoim mrd
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In 2009 the CBD refurbished and repaired these decorative string street lighting. During the holidays, ~ = *
 the lighting finked the'CBD area to the Upper Fillmore Street District who also had decorative string tree © -

lights. DPW has recently informed the CBD that the holiday lights need to be upgraded to “commercial”
- grade and can only remain on the trees for three months during the holiday season to protect their. -
_ health. Leaving the lights year-round negatively impacts the trees because of “girdling.” in 2009, _

: 'followmg the expiration of the redevelopment area, the sick, dead or m|ss:ng frees were rep!aced w;th

412,
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new trees all street trees on Fillmore are now undef DPW care. The CBD has to decide if they have the
funds to replace and upgrade the decorative lights this holiday season.

District Identity and Streetscape Improvements {DISI)

The CBD has increased spending in the District Identity and Streetscape Improvement service category
over the past three years. The Management Plan calls for 15% of the budget to be spent on DISI
projects. In 2007, the CBD spent 8% of their budget on sponsorship of events that promoted the district.
in 2008, the CBD again spent 8% of their budget on this service category but focused on marketing and
promoting the district and building up their website. n 2009, the CBD received outside grants to help
them achieve their marketing and promotions goals and spent 24% of their budget on DIS! activities.

District |dentity:

The CBLYs District identity actlvities started in 2007 when they provided charitable donations to
organizations and sponsoring special events aimed at bringing people to the CBD area and promoting
‘the district. In 2008, the CBD hired Chen Design Associates who provided a logo design for their
business cards, letterhead and envelopes. They also developed the CBD's websate

(www . fillmorejazzebd. org) This website was eventually upgraded

In 2009, the CBD hired a marketing team including Traina PR & Associates to market the District, attract
more people to the neighborhood and bring more businesses to the area. The firm conducted a
branding study and survey of various stakeholders to solidify the name of the district as “The Fillmore.”
They also developed a comprehensive three-year marketing plan; created a new logo, a new website
twww.thefillmoredistrict.com) and new branding tagline “Heart and Soul of San Francisco.” The CBD
conducted a public relations blitz to travel and entertainment writers and piaced advertising in various
media outlets online and in print.

in Decemiber 2009, the CBD contracted with a part-time person, Meaghan Mitchell to assist with -
marketing services. As a result, the CBD has launched a district Facebool site (over 2000 fans) and
Twitter site {over 900 followers) and hosted a special orientation reception with Open Top Bus Tours for
29 hotel concierges at the Jazz Heritage Center. With the new logo, the CBD installed 100 street
banners to identify and promote the neighborhood.

In 2009, the CBD sponsored events such as the Jazz'z Neo Soul Festival, the 26" Annual Fillmore Jazz
Festival, the 6™ Annual Black Family Dad, the 2™ Annual Cool Black Ball and the African American Art &
Culture Complex 8™ Annual Holiday Fair. In addition, the CBD's website provides marketing for these
events as another way of supporting them. The CBD is committed to continuing support for special

- events that will attract visitors to the district and promote the area. The CBD created an application

process for groups requesting special event assistance during the 2010 fiscal year. However, they are
unable to fund any requésts at this time based on their projected budget shortfall. The CBD is
~ committed to supporting special events in the future when they raise additional funds.

in 2009, the Fillmore CBD entered into a four-year agreement with Steven Restivo Event Services, LLC,
the producer of the annual Fillmore Jazz Festival. The agreement entails providing the CBD with $7500
worth of goods and services. The Festival producer provided the CBD with ten complimentary booths
and two tables to be used by neighborhood nonprofit organizations, small businesses and artists. The
Festival also hired local residents to work and local artists to perform and are paid directly as part of the
$7500. This agreement is not reflected in the financial statements of the CBD in 2009. This shou!d have
been counted as in- k:nd/donated services as it helped promote the district. -

473



Streetscape tmprovements:

According to their 2007 annual report, there were a number of issues that needed :mmed:ate attentnon
that the CBD strongly advocated be repaired.including the paver sidewalks on Fillmore Street that were.
buckling due to tree root growth, the sidewalk light fixtures that were damaged, the shattered glass
panels on the “Blue Bridge” over Geary Street, the broken trash bins, and.lastly, the report noted that a
number of trees along Fillmore Street were dead or severely damaged. All of these issues were
addressed by the award of a $1.8 million capital improvement project by SFRA that was the result of an
advocacy campaign by the Fillmore CBD, OEWD and Supervisor Mirkarimi.

In 2008 the CBD worked with DPW to review the designs and materials for the streetscape improvement
projects and they monitored the progress made by DPW and SFRA to complete all the needed
streetscape repairs and maintenance. n 2009 DPW installed new pedestrian sidewatk light poles, new
trash cans, replaceéd damaged and sick street frees and repaved the sidewalk wcthln the Fillmore
commercial district.

The Filimore CBD was awarded a total of $31,337 in Community Challenge Grants in 2008 including close
to $5000 for plants and incidentals to improve the Gene Suttle Plaza and about $27,000 for street
furniture and greening of the Lower Fillmore area. Due to the leadership changes at the CBD and not
having an Executive Director for over a year, the Community Challenge Grant was never implemented.
The CBD was recently informed that they lost this grant. The CBD will have to re- app!y for grant funds
from the Community Challenge Grant program..

Administrative and Corporate Operations

This is the area the Fillmore CBD has struggled with the most. In the initial years the CBD experlenced
serious challenges managing and supervising its staff, challenges with board and staff relationships and a
very difficult time controlling their regular public board meetings. n 2008, following a series of public
disputes between certain members of the board and between certain board members and staff, OEWD

- and Supervisor Mirkarimi insisted the CBD get organizational development training and assistance.
OEWD provided the CBD with a direct services grant with CompassPoint Nonprofit Services for 12
months of organizational development training. This training has paid off and additional follow-up
technical assistance is recommended to insure the continued growth of the organization, for the on- .
going health of its relationships with the public, the board of directors and the CBD staff and

contractors. In addition to the OEWD funded technical assistance, the CBD hired CompassPoint to assist. - o

with their executive director search.

The Fillmore CBD was established in August 2006 and services began in January 2007. For the first six
months, the Board oversaw the CBD's activities which were primarily street cleaning and maintenance.
The Board hired Neil Trama as the Executive Director in May 2007. He set up the office, dealt with all -
the contracis, convened the board and conducted all other administrative duties.,

AL 2 L My el 1 fodd AN 31
(AL the luly 2008 .ncetmg, the CBD's board suspendad My, Trama and

California Labor-Commission for retaliatory suspension and unsafe workmg ndltlons The CBD .
retained legal counsel to deal with this issue. A settlement was agreed to in Apnt 2010 and the CBD pald_ .
the former employee per the settlement agreement : :

CAn interim Executive Dire’ctor, Jeff Einchenfield, was hired in July 2009 with'the assistahce of
CompassPoint Nonprofit Services to oversee the CBD’s programs. The Board also engaged - -

- CompassPoint to assist in-the permanent Executive Director search and with organizational and board
. development training via the OEWD direct services grant. With CompassPoint’s assistance, in November~ - '
4"

L oaTs



2009, the Board held an ali-day retreat and training where they discussed'their vision and priorities for
the next 18 months. The Board agreed that they were committed 1o renewing the CBD after it expires
on june 30, 2011, : :

The CBD Board consisted of eight members for the past year. They created a Board Development
committee and developed a Board Recruitment plan which they presented at their March 24, 2010
meeting. This recruitment plan includes outreach, candidate orientation, the apphcatlon and elections
process and orientation and training for new hoard members ]

The CBD recently held board electionson Oct. 27, 2010. They expanded the board 6 12 members ~ 6
property owners, 3 merchants and 3 commumty members.

Compass Point provided OEWD with a report on their work with the CBD and a copy of a board
development binder they produced for the CBD Board. Please see the attached summary prov;ded by
CompassPoint. Some of their recommendations include:
s Continuing board development trainings to further strengthen the board especially when they
have new members;
o Developing board orientation meeting and ensuring that alkboafd members are assighed to a
committee; '
s Continuing to develop board committees for effective governance; and
e Taking advantage of training opportunities particularly in the areas of governance, community
outreach and fundraising. ‘ '

CompassPoint also provided recommendations on the qualities and skills needed for a successful
permanent Executive Director for the CBD. Please see the attachment called “Leadership Agenda.”

CBD Annual Budget Analvs:s

The CBD fiscal year is from January 1% ~ December 31%. OEWD staff reviewed their financial statements
using their CPA Financial Reviews for FY 2007, FY 2008 and FY 2009. The following is a surmmary of their
financial activity for the past three years.

Fy 2007

During their first full yyear of operation, the Fillmore CBD received $302,684 in revenues and expended
$210,129. They spent a-majority of their expenses ($132,710) in SOBO. The CBD spent 516,550 (8%} of
. their total expenses on DISI through sponsorship of events and spent $60,869 {29%) of their total
expenses on administrative costs such as salaries, insurance, contracts and set up costs. They spent less
than budgeted for DISI because they were just ramping up and more than the budgeted amount for
Administrative costs due to initial one-time office set up costs. ‘At the end of their fiscal year, the CBD
“had net assets’ of $92,555 and $108,930 in cash available. ' '

The CBD received $1733 from investment.income, 1% of their total revenue. The rest of their funding
came from assessment funds. . :

* Net Assets are the difference between the organization's total assets and its total liabilities on the balance sheet indicating the
net financial worth for the organization. ‘ :
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FY 2008

In 2008, the CBD received $299,814 in assessment funds and $1903 from investment income. They
expended $337,350 -- $178,260 (53%) in SOBO; $25,502 {8%) on DISt and $133,588 (40%) on
administrative costs mainly due to their employment related complaint and legal fees.. As of December
31, 2008, the CBD had net assets of $56,922 and $96,123 in cash available.

While the CBD was awarded $31,337 in Community Chaf!er{ge Grants and a $25,000 grant from OEWD
for marketing, neither one.of these government grants were fisted as income in their 2008 CPA Review
because they did not implement projects with these funds in 2008. As a result, they spent less than '
budgeted for DISI and only had one percent of the:r income come from sources other than assessment
funds.

The Fillmore CBD was instrumental to advocating for funds from the SF Redevelopment Agéncy for
major streetscape improvements. While the $1.8 miltion for capital improvements were not provided
directly to the CBD, they deserve a lot of credit for bringing these much needed funds to the district.

FY 2009

In 2009, the CBD projected a budget of $462,981. The CBD's proposed budget assumed income from
other sources including $101,337 in grants for markéting and board development from OEWD, the
Community Challenge Grant and a marketing grant from SFRA.

According to their 2009 CPA financial review, the CBD received revenue from assessment funds, earned
inferest and grants. They directly received a $25,000 grant from OEWD for marketing (Note: Their CPA
Financial Review shows that the CBD received 516,000 in grants because the CPA firm allocated the other
$9000 as assessment revenue. OFWD has advised the CBD that this should be corrected. The CPA firm
will correct this in the FY 2010 ﬁnancraf review).

The CBD also benefited from other grants that they did not dlrectly receive including a $15 000 grant
from OEWD for CompassPoint to do board development and training and assistanice on the Executive

Director search. The funds were paid directly to CompassPoint by OEWD. SFRA also provided a $30, 000 o '

grant for marketing but these funds also went dlrectly to the firm, Traina PR & Associates who

completed the branding work for the CBD. The CBD lost their Community Challenge Grant of $31,337 in

2009 because they did not implement a project with these funds. The CBD also entered into an
agreement with Steven Restivo Event Services, LLC, the producer of the annual Filimore Jazz Festival.

The agreement entails prowdmg the CBD with $7500 worth of goods and services. While their ﬁnanc:a.! . -': o

" review onh,f shows$25 000 in grants, they actually raised another $52 500.

They spent less than budgeted for DIsH because they didn't mpiement the:r Commumty Chaﬂenge grant |

while they spent more than budgeted for Administrative expenses again due to their legal fees for the .
personnel refated complaint and settlement. The CBD spent $57,734 in iegat feesin 2009.-

Accordmg to the CcPA Rewew the CBD received $329,311 in revenue and expended $379, 585 in 2009 _
They expended $169,991 {45%} in SOBO; $89,246 {24%) on DISI and $120,348 (32%) on administrative .
costs mainly due to their legal fees and settlement. Using $50,274 of the carryover funds from FY 2008
to cover their expenses, the CBD is left with net assets of $6,648 at the end of 2009 '

',.;:\{2010 : L L
The proposed budget for FY 2010 is $399 042 whnch znctudes a market:ng grant from OEWD for $50, 000. B

They plan on spending 50% of their budget on sidewalk oper‘atmns, beautification and security; 21% i in

Y



* district identity and streetscape improvements; 24% in admamstrat:ve costs and 5% for

contingency/reserve. All budget line items (percentage of total budget) are consistent with the original
Managemeni Plan.,

Findings/Recommendations and Conclusion
OEWD staff has asked the Fillmore CBD to comply with the requirement to submit Mid-Year reports.
They have agreed and will submit their FY 2010 Mid-Year report on July 31, 2010. '

1) In their Annual Reports, the CBD should indicate the amount they spent out of their Contingency/

- Reserve funds se it is clear how they allocated their contingency each year.

2) tn their Annual Reports and CPA Financial Review statements, the CBD should include the amount of
in-kind donations/donated services that hetp the CBD achieve their goals. For example, the CBD has
entered into a four-year agreement with the Filimore Jazz Festival, they should inform their CPA firm to
indicate‘this ‘amount annually.

3) The current Executive D:rector Jeff Elchenﬁeld a professional With CBD management experience, was
hired on an interim basis.- He has agreed to stay with the CBD untif the end of the current 5 year term,
following the CBD.renewal election process. if the CBD is renewed it must go through a comprehensive
Executive Director search process to insure that a very experienced non profit organization director with
board management skills, strong community building and public relationship skills, economic
development, services management, marketing, fundraising and local Fillmore and neighborhood
development expertise is hired.

As mentioned above, CompassPoint has provided recommendations that will help insure the long-term
success of the CBD. OEWD strongly recommends that Fillmore CBD take advantage of other technical
assistance trainings and work with an experienced consultant especla!iy when it |s time to hire a new
permanent Executive Director.

The Fillmore CBD has been faced with a lot of internal and external challenges since its inception. With
the SF Redevelopment Agency finishing their 30-year tenure in the neighborhood, the residents and
husiness owners in the Fillmore have continually asked the CBD to take on issues beyond their mission
and purpose. Community members still don’t fully understand the scope of work of the CBD and what
they have control over. Internally, the CBD has had to deal with a personnel refated lawsuit and board
turnover.

Even with these challenges however, the Fillmore CBD has continued to comply with their Management
Plan and has provided the services that they were elected to do. Per their Management Plan, they have
spent a majority of their funds on cleaning and maintaining the district. They have received outside
grants to market and promote the neighborhood and have created a website full of information and
resources about the district. The Board has established a process for recruiting and electing new board
members in 2010 and they have cormmitted themselves to implementing a CBD renewal campaign over
the next twelve months. ' -
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Annual Budgets compared to original Management Plan Budget - | S

60% e : ,

i - 50%

40% _ . : o
& Mgmt ?lan Operating Budget

u, @ 2007 Budget DR
- 30% 2008 Budget .

: 2009 Budget . -
; . o =
L o0m % 2010 Budget R

b10% S — .

’ 5% i

0% - o

| Sidewatk Operations, ‘ District Identity and Administrative Expenses Contingency Reserve

) Beautification and Order Streetscape Improvements -



’Table 2

Other Income Sources (e.g. Grants, Donations,
In-Kind, ete.) / 5% requirement |

2007 Assessment Revenue’
and Other Income

pecial Benefit
Assessments 99%

B Investment income
<1%

Between FY 2007 - FY 2008, the CBD advdcated for funds for the district and helped get $1.8 million for
capital improvements from SF Redevelopment Agency.

2008 Assessment Revenue
and Other Income

#: Special Benefit
Assessments 99%

Investment income <1%

During FY 2008, the CBD was awarded a $31,337 Community Challenge Grant but it was not implemented.

i
1

2609 Assessment Revenue |
and Other Income o 5

# Special Benefit
Assessments 92%

B Grants 8% '

#l Investment income 0%

During FY 20&)9, the CBD received $25,000 from OEWD for marketing and was awarded other grants that
were provided directly to contractors {i.e: board development, PR and marketing} and also entered into a
four year agreement with the Fiflmore Jazz Festival worth $7,500/yr (in-kind donation).
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Table 4

" FILLMORE COMMUNITY BENEFIT DISTRICT

2010 Budget
REVENUES. |
' Special Benefit Assessments 311,980
Grants . : 50,000
Interest earned , ‘ 1,000
Other income ' 20,414
Carryover from previous year . 6,648
o ' $ 399,042
EXPENDITURES i
Program services
District identity and street improvements 84,447
Street operations, beautification, and order : 260,000
General and administrative expenses 06,347
Contingency/Reserve ' - 18,248
$ 399,042

2010 Budget
. 88 District identity and street
improvements 21%

¥ Street operations, beautification,
‘and order 50%

# General and administrative
expenses 24%

Bl Contingency/Reserve 5%




Frlimore CBD anerd of Direciors

To:

From: CompassPoint Consuftants

Date: - July 29, 2010 - _

Re: LEADERSE‘%IP AGENDA , _ C _ _
Major Themes and Diractions Emerging from the Consulting Engagement

Agency Sirengths

. Tne'FiIFr’noEre Comm-uniiy Benefit District is viewed as one of the more accéssible

o

organizations in the community and, because of its quasi- public nature, enjoys the

‘ .\nsrbrhty and engagement of community members that is unique to most nonprofits,

giving it the potential role as key community builder and convener.
The CBD has emerged from a poteritially devastaimg penod of turmorf at the board and

‘executive. ieaderehrp Ieve! inits young’ htstory to'a more comfortab!e stagis of ope;a‘tronai

: leadershlp and’ management

- The Bodrd of Directors. Is: a-more engaged eohesrve and supportrve governmg body

that 5eeks fo play a greater rele i bnng:ng wsrbllrty and resources to the CBD and |ts
programs : _

. Strategic Drrections The mair prlonty and focus of the CBD over the next year rs the

suocessfui rengwal of the CBD contraot wrth the Crty o f..'; : 5. ‘z -

oy

As optrons for the CBD Board o consider presented here are the dfrectlons thaf emergeo’ as
dominant fhemes in the course of the consultmg engagement over the past year.

1.

Sohdrfy and enharice CBD’s current relationshrp and v:srbmty wr’rh the Fu!lmore résidents

- and: busrness community in order to more suo_cessfufiy ey ol its ﬁrst prrortty which i is

renewal of the CBD contraot wn:h the Crtyr

Contlnue to glve pnorrty o srrategres for recrmtmg, developmg, and reia;nrng qualrfred
board members Y !
a. Contrnue with the board reorurtment and elec:tron process as outl:ned by ’rhe
board: deveiopment committes, -
b. Engage in a thoughtful and m’rentronal process for brmgmg on the hew board
. members and ensurrng therr full understandrng, engagemem and support of the
CBD. : : :

Build on the work and process of the board deve!opment commlﬁee to be:used as a

model for successful working committees. For the CBD to effectively carry out its
mission and be of maximum service to the Fillmore oommumty, the board committees
will be relied upon 1o do a lot of the heavy lifting, with major decision-making and priority-.
setting done at the committee level before bemg brought to the full board for its buy-in.

a. Assign each new and existing board member to at Ieast one committee wrth clear
roles and expectations for board members and a cléar charge for each
committee.

b. Consider recruiting non-board member residents and community leaders to serve

on board committees, with the exception of the executive oommrttee
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executivetransitions

4. Grow the capacity of the board of dlrec’fors to support the efforts to !’8188 agency
visibility, good wili, and public and private doilars Co

-Board Prﬁoriiieg Activities seen as needed for. continued 'sucéeéeful operaﬁo'n'bf the‘GBD

1. Rewse the eontract with the interim executive direccor \mth clear expectataons ’nmeimee,

~and performance maasures.

2. Provide an appropriate level of support and guzdance o ’rhe interim executn/e dlrector in
the, prog¢ess of renewung the GBD contract with the Czty

Recommended Capacrw Buniqu Pﬂorltles

1. Bu;td a greater sense of, cu[tura! knowfedge and htstary of: the Fillmare cemmumty in
.orderdo increase the. GBD’s ahgnment and public profile with the Fillmore community.

2. Build a closer reiationshap between the CBD and the key constituents (property owners,
busingsses, residents, community organizations, and city officials) that will enhance the
CBD 5. ablhty io successfuliy renew ifs contract with the City.- :

3. Contmue board development in !me with strategic needs’ of the agency.

Permanent Executlve D:rector Candldate Proflle S : :

- In the not-too-distant future, the CBD Board will need to dec:de upan permanent executrve
_ ieadersh:p These are the qualities and skills that itis suggested should be sought in the
fpermanent executrve d.frector B : ; : ‘

sion for and deep knowledge of the Fillmore. community, its htstory and communlty

: g-that htstory, w:th an orfentation

2 Substantlal expenence in mamtaimng the flnanma! wablhty of a commun:tynbased

orofit in the facé of constantly shnjting revenue streams. . ..., N

. ong track record of devéloping positive relationships wﬂh key gevernment ofﬂmals

. business and community leaders, residents, and .community activists,

4. An aptitude for and record. of practlcmg a fair amount of initigtive:in deailngs with the
public with a high degree ‘of cudtural humility and. understandmg and tact:

5.  Experience in bualdlng an effective board ~ executwe re!ationsth in service of the

.. organizational mission.

6. Proven track récord of sucoessful!y runnmg a commun[ty based non proflt organizatlon
or ssmslar busmess :mprovement diStI‘lCt

BT TR
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Consulting @@5@ @wt |

Byron Johnson Senzor Project Director
CompassPoint Nonproﬁt Services
'July 29, 2010

Eﬁackgmund :

. The Fillmore District Communlty Beneﬂt District (CBD) isa fundmg mechan;sm whereby property owners
in the CBD area assess themselves to fund services and mprovements that benefit the properties in the
District over and above those provided by the City and County of San Francrsco The Fr!lmore D:stnct
was voted on by the property owhers and approved by the Board of Supervssors in August 2006 A
nonprofit board of diréctors compnsed Df Drstrlct property’ owners, busingss owners and resadents funs

- the CBP: Actavntles snclude cleanmg, streetscape improvements, sidewalk maintenance and marketrng
and brandlng ser\nces The CBD includes 303 properties in the District.

The. Mayor s Office of Economic Workforce Deveiopment approached CompassPomt supportm%:wo
areas: board trammg and development:
‘ L K . AV M . . .l f
; Pmiet‘t nés‘crspﬁbh”f |
Conduct Assessment of CBD Board of Dtrectors ‘
o Facghtated seif—assessment by board members wa electromc survey o det&rmine fevel of
- e Enclude assessment of board’s strengths weaknesses challenges Ievels of sat;sfactaon wsth
board practices and operatzons and the needs of individudl board members..
e  Mehitored board mteractrons and process through meetlng attendance and interactions W|th
board members and stakeholders , S ‘

. Provide Board Tralnmg and Board Development .
e Planned and facilitated board retreat to address best practrces in:

- o Roles and responsibilities of the Board and its meimbers

Represeriting the board in the community - .

Completing tasks and meeting deadlines

Develop organizational vision

Plan, prioritize and set board goals

Establishing communications agreements

Q0 O 0 0 0
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o Facilitated creation of board development committee to:
o Devefop a plan and process for recruiting new board members
.ol Assess need of addstronal hoard development objectives

Developed Essential Board Materials and Tools
' o Created board manual .
o Devetoped board member job descnptions N
o Developed board contracts

| Gutrzomes
At the end of aur work together the CBD has:

1. Increased its under'standin’g of the roles and responsibifities of board members
2. Increased its undérstanding of the roles and reSponsibili_ties of the executive director
3. An ob@?ratiénai plan for, developing the board and recruiting new menibers:

'
to

Suggesttons and Recommendations . o
As optaoos for the CBD Board and MOEWD to consrder, the foiiowmg are presented as

' recommondatzons to sustam the iearnmg and growth ofthe. orgamzatlon given that its overall number.

ohe. prqorety ovér the next year Is. successful renewal of its contract with- the Clty and County of San
Franc:sco : : - , ; .

Contlnue with board development trainmg and efforts to further strengthen the board
o Contmue with board recruitmenit and electlon process as olitlined by the boord
'deveiopment ctommittee : CLE

o Deveiop board onentatron meetmg for new. members to mciude sectton '
contmumg members '

o Assign each new membérto a commlttee -
o Use board development commlttee as a modet for effecta
o Seek put. and take advantage of t’ratnmg opportu |tff : j I i
: CompassPomt partu:ularly ihthe areas of govemance commun:ty outreach and

: fundralsmg PR e T e entn

Work to enhance CBD's current reiat:onshrp and vassbllity wrth Failmoro res:dents and busmess

commumtv e aoaetey .

‘o Recruit non- board member residents and commumty leaders to serve on board
committees IR R

o Builda orna?nr cengs nF cidtural |lr-nwgar!cm and hict

i iy
SOES SN0 ASOTY OT Wnd muim un.-: <o i.y‘

o Actively participate in Western Additlon Commumtv and Capacrt dm ogram !ed
by Mayors of Hougmg and CompassPomt SR PREREE :

H L Ty mm;.
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THE F!LLMORE DISTRiCT CBD:
SWINGING INTO A NEW DECADE OF DEVELOPIVIENT
AND OPPORTUNITY |

Since ifs crea‘uan in 2006, the Fillmore Jazz District Cnmmumty Association of
San Francisco has provided services and improvements to promote, beautify
and increase public utilization, appreciation and enjoyment of the historic
Filimore District through management and operatlon of the Fillmore Commumty
Benefit District (CBD).

Working in conjunction with the
City of San Francisco, the CBD
aims to preserve the Fillmore's
local‘character, multi-cultural
heritage and storied past as

the city’s premier live music
destination. "Each week, visitors S R ———
and locals pour into the District Gold Wac Bids porarmingfo fans at The Flimare Mfteriam
to enjoy our live performance venues, restaurants, shops, open spaces
Saturday farmers market and pubhc events.

- The Association’s nenpmﬁt board of dlrectors
compnsed of District property owners,
merchants and community members, pmudiy
operates the CBD; an executive director and a
part-time ass;stant handle day-to-day.

manégement CBDHC’{EV!UE’.SIHC!UGB sidewalk .Swn'!g dance Eentt;stants on the‘ Blué ﬁ'riéiée DR E

the Fiil J fi 1
cieaning, sireetscape improvements, grafiti during the Filmore Jazz Festia

‘removal, marketmg, public re!a’uons and brandmg services. The CBD is funded

by special assessments on the 303 commercna! properttes in the district (based .

on each building’s lmearfmntage Eand area, square fﬁotage and usage) as

S L weil as fmm gran’{s fmm the Clty of San Franmsco

Camg
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD PRESIDENT

‘Dear Community Members,_

This year marked a new beginning for the Fillmore CBD. The Board
started a year of positive change, putting new systems and

" people in place. We appointed Jeff Eichenfield, a seasoned
cammermal district manager with more than 25 years experience, to serve as
interim director while we continue our search for a full time Executive Director.
Assisting Jeff is his amazing Marketing Assistant Meaghan Mitchell, whom we
hope all of you have had an dppor{unity to meet.

Many thanks go to our Board of Directors, all of whom are volunteers from
business, the community, and non—prdfits. Their generously given time and

- expertise help the CBD realize its goals of providing an attractive, safe and
desirable neighbortiood in which to live and do
business. Recognizing the countless hours dedi-
cated to a project of this scope, and | would like
you to join me in thanking our out-going directors
John Hudson, Andy Choi and Genny Lim for their
contributions to our ongoing programs.

During 2009 we worked together to accomplish Every Saturday locals gather ta socialize, listen to

an ;mpresswe list of ob;ect;ves mciudmg ‘ tive jazz and shop at the Fillmere Farmer's Markef-. | c

having a seven-days-a- ~week street mamtenance team to keep our district ciean
and supporting District businesses with a marketing campaign that tells our
neighbors, as well as San Francisco visitors, all we have to offer. '

We completed a .bra'hding SUWéy,_ created a new logo that graced banners draped |

throughout the Fillmore, and engaged in an advertising campaign in visitor/tourist .

T
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publications. In addition, we embarked on a social net-
working campaign with an active Twitter account and
a Faceook page that now counts more than 2,000
followers who keep up-to-date with District-wide news
and activities. We supported successful events that
showcased the District--the Fillmore Jazz Festival,
The Cool Black Ball, Jazz's Neo Soul Festival, and the
Fillmore Center Summer Movie and Concert Series,
to name a few. Finally, we welcomed new businesses

" to the District, including Gussie’s Chicken and Waffles,
Fat Angel food and fibations, Espress Yourself coffee
bar, Bruno’s Pizzeria Cucina, Dibb’s BBQ & Grill, and -
Jazz Wash. Please join me in supporting them and

encouraging their success. Colarful banaers showcasing the District’s new logo fine
‘ : Fillmore Street from Post to Golden Gate Avenue. |

‘We look forward to continuing our momentum with plans to support new event's,
welcome new businesses and residents, and to let the world know what |
the Fillmore District has to offer. For future Fillmore District leaders, if you are
interested in being 'active in the community or joining the Association board,

- p!eése contact our offices or attend our public meetings.

Here’s to another landmark year for the Fillmore District,

Paul Hyams
President
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FILLMORE COMMUNITY BENEFIT DISTRICT
FISCAL YEAR 2009 ANNUAL REPORT

This is the Annual Report for the Fillmore Community Benefit District. This
report covers the fiscal year January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009.

During the report penod thefe were no changes in the boundaraes of the Com-

4 nc,l__qur;g'an estimated $311,980 from assessments,
rpl__u_s_funds carried over from 2009, $50,000 from grant
00 from investment income. |

) 4'9?




2009 INCOME AND EXPENSES o o

INGOME ACTUALS © BUDGET

Special Berefit Assessments - $302,980 $310,985

Sueplus Funds from prior year  $51,337 450,659

Grants | $25,000 g101387
Misc. ncome ‘ $1,303 ~$0

TOTAL INGBME . 4388,620 $4562,981
EXPENSES *ACTUALS. BUDGET'

Sidewalk Operations, . $176,476 §261,.844
Beautification and Order . oo

District identity, - $94,695 $117,841

Streetscape Improvement,
Marketing and Promotions

Administrative - $109,142 $72,198 : N ‘
Contingency/Reserve $307 $31,008

TOTAL EXPENSES ‘ $380,620 $462,981

2010 BUDGET

INCOME  BUDGET g
Special Benefit Assessments _ $311,980 E TR £
“Surplus Funds from prior year $36,062 ‘ N | ERCEI ; tg
Grants o $50,000 E
Misc. Income ' $1,000 é
TOTALINCOME  $380042

EXPENSES | . BUDGET

Sidewalk Operations, , $200,000 -

Beautification and Order

.

District ldentity,
Streetscape Improvement,
Marketing and-Promotions

-Administrative -

Contingency/Reserve.

TOTAL EXPENSES
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|. 2009 ACTIVITIES

SID_EWALK OPERATIONS, BEAUTIFICATION & 'IMPROVEMENTS

L. Sidewalk and Public Space Maintenance — The CBD contracted with Cieanscapes for
approxnmately $12,000 per month to continue to make the District appealing to residents,
visitors, restaurant goers, shoppers, and investors. Public space maintenance eccurred
seven-days-a-week. Some of the activities included:

e sidewalk and gutter sweeping

s sidewalk power washmg

* weeding

» graffiti and advertising poster removal
@ cleaning of news racks

e reporting damaged news racks and sidewalks.

* In September the CBD issued a Request for Proposals for sidewalk and public space
maintenance services that resulted in the selection of GMG Janitorial to perform these
services in 2010. Crew staffing was recruited fram the neighborhood using the services of
One-Stop Business Services.

TN

2. Becorative Tree Lighting — The CBD contracted with The Christmas Li ghf Pros to
refurbish the decorative street tree lighting. The lighting complemented the marquis signs -
. at the thlmore Auditorium and Yoshl $ and set the tone of the district as 2 vibrant

agd



The Fitimore CBD created erew caps,
jackets and shirts for GMG employees
to wear white doing their partto
keep the Distriet clean and
appealing forresidents and
visitors.




. 2009 ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

DISTRICT IDENTITY & STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS

1. Marketing and Puhllc Relations — The CBD used $69,695 of assessment revenues and
$25,000 in grants from the C:ty of San Francisco Office of Economic and Workforce
Development (OEWD) to augment $60,000 in d[rect marketing spending by the OEWD and
the San Francisca Redeve!opment Agency to conduct the following activities:

¢ Conduct a brandmg study and citizen's survey that resulted in sehdlfy;ng the name of
the district as “The Filtmore District.” :

o [evelop a comprehenswe three -year marketing plan.

» Develop a new logo; mstail 100 street banners and launch a new website
(www.thefillmoredistrict.com) with the tagline “Heart and Sou! of San Francisco™ to
coincide with the July 4 weekend Fillmore Jazz Festival and the 100,000 visitors it attracts.

o Conduct a public relations blitz to travel and entertainment writers and place advertis- (
ing in various media including San Francisco magazine, Where magazine, SFCVB Visitor -

Guide, SFCVB Convention Planner's Guide, SFCVB Tour Planners Guide, SFCVB In- Reom

City Guide, CBS Television 5,

San Francisco Chronicle, San
Francisco Examiner, The Western
Edition and the New Fillmore.

The Fillmore District
walt Info | Dlbcwirlons  GtherPages  PEy
p.

o Launich a district fécet’_)oak__- = ,;, R
site that has grown to 2,000
fans and a Twitter site that .~

has grown to 900 followers.

& . T!mrulmre CenterApartments Cless tha o

' Fatebook walt and it must be submitted by
Oetiber B 4 5:L3prn - Commant  3ihe Ty .

Y Hnsghan Mitcheltties his.

T W 3 comment.,

ik Fitlmore Digtzict Tonight at The Al
Lomatent

» Host a special orientation. =~

Suggeatiafiiends

- . - EEE Subreatle via 52
raception with Open Top Bus | ._
. o e E ) e s bzttt B
Tours for 29 hotel concierges = 7 ERREESMETE L Semeraien woio e
R . " : . :.m,,.ﬂ.,.'”::ﬂ':f?..,, L 5 G paopk e this. :

at the Fillmore Heritage Center. -~ &9 e

eateilmeridiistam
P

The hvs:o:ie meom &
San Fram:nsco whema -
dxvursdy ﬂmmm eliie
“The Harlam o the We:

San an:ucu s rovitali-

* worid-clada rEstEuraRT

- Fillmore residents and visitors regularly visit
* www.thefilfmoredistriet.com and our Facebook page -
for update-to-date information on latest happenings
and events taking place throughout the District.
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2. Special Events — The CBD supported the following commﬁnity events.

o Jazz'z Neo Soul Festival

_@ Fillmore Plaza’s Summer Goncert -
and Film Series

e Independént Artists’ Week
e 26th Annual Ffiimore Jaz_z?es’tivai

-e Gth Annual Black Family Day

o 2nd Annual Taste of Fillmore

. , ‘ Festival goers interact at the
» The Fillmore’s 1st Annual Cool Black Ball ‘Fillmore Jazz Festival.

o 2009 Kwanzaa Celebration
s African American Art & Culture Complex 8th AnnuaI‘Hoiﬁday Fair

@ S’a’[u,rday Farmer's Market

{ Blimors Puimats Markat -
!:\mry&mrﬂnymm-wm

Lvrrer ¥4 3 wch veniXend
Yor xRy quiem Sk, .
yoguiabier,

= BUMEYE ‘ :
e resumbn COOKES Taste of Fillmore
wnd mush Tty KB, . N

e,
> Mom > Nam
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I. 2010 ACTIVITIES

The planned activities for 2010 include continuing our comprehensive sidewalk cleaning and
graffiti removal services, expanding and improving upon our website and Facebook and Twitter
site use, advertising in visitor oriented publications, and supporting community events that
attract bioth locals and visiters to the district. Also in 2010 the CBD will begin the process of
gathering comimunity and property owner input into plans for renewing the CBD's assessment
district mechanism which is sef to expire in 2011. ' '

IIl. METHOD & BASIS FOR LEVYING 2010 ASSESSMENT

ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY: The Filtmore Community Benefit District is funded through an
annual assessment from property owners within the district. The annual assessments are
based on three property variables — square footage pf the building, gross footage of the lot and,
linear frontage (sidewalk frontage) ' -

There are fou'r‘berieﬁtc zones in the district and the rates for each of the three variables depend
on the benefit zone in which the parcel is located and the type of use of the particular b_uifding.

'BENEHT (GROSS BLILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE, GROSS LOT SHE GROSS LINEAR FRONTAGE
_ZONE FARSTYEAR FIRST YEAR (ALL SIDES), FIRST YEAR

1 Per Square foot (A/Retail): § 0.16 $0.12 per sq. ft. - $14.00 per linear ft.
o Per Square foot (B/0ffice): $ 0.10 _
Per square foot {C~F): $0.03
. Per square foot (G) — no charge

Per sqisare foot (H) Amphitheater/
auditorium with maximum occupancy
of 1,000 or more: $0.32 -

9 - Persquarefoot (A/Retail): § 0.10 $0.09 per sq. . $10.00 per fincar .
‘ Per Square foot (8/0ffice): $0, 07 ' o
Per Square foot (C-F): $ 0.03
" persquare foof {G) nocharge -

g Per square foet (WRetail) §0.13 $0.096 per sq. ft. "$10.00 per linear ft. -~
S 7. Persquare foot (B/0ffice): $ 0.08 . S '
0 Persquare foot {C~F): $0.0175-
- . Persquare foot () — no charge -

o4 Per square foat (A/Retail): $0.10 . $0.05 persq.ft. . . $4.00perlinearft
L Per square foot (B/Office): $0.07 ' - RN o
Per square foot (C - F: $6.03

Per square foot (G) — o charge

o

4se |



BUILDING USE CODE  DESCRIPTION OF USE

Retail space, hotels, motels;

Office and Commercial uses, free standing for-profit parkmg struciures;
Industrial/Manufacturing/Distribution/Wholesale;

institational (City, County, School, public utility, parks, ete.);

i T o S e B = = S

Shurch, non-profit public bensfit corporations;
fResidential - Multi-unit housing, gondominiums, apartments

- Non-functional building strugtures, the building square feet comprising
G erempt) a parking structure that services the rasidential or office pnpulat?en within the building

H : ‘ Amphxt%}eater/Aadelnnum with maximum occupancy of 1,000 o7 more

TOTAL PROPERTY ASSESSMENT CALCULATION

BENEFIT ZONE #: Building square foot lot size rate per lot size + Building lineas frontage x rate per linear frontage +
Building square faotége x rate per square foot = Total Assessment Amount
For example a 5,000 square foot [0'( with 50 feet of frontage and 4,000 square feet of usable retaﬁ hutidlng use in
Benefit Zone 1 would y|eld an annual assessment of:
Beneftt Zone 1.

5,000 x $0.12 = $600.0¢ in int size

50 x $14.00 = $700.00 in linear frontage, and

4,000 x $0.16 = $640.00 in building square footage

total assessment = § 1,940.00 per vear

SPECIAL THANKS TO:

. Gavin Rewsom, Mayor of Sar Francisce : FILLMORE: DISTRICY GBD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
. Ross Mirkarimi, Supervisor, District 5 . AS OF JUNE 2010: :

Vallie Brawn, Legislative Aide, District 5 - Paul Hyams, CBD President, Fillmore Centerfiaramar
San Francisco Board of Supervisors ' Monetta White, CBD Vice President, 1300 On Fillmore
Michae! Cohen, Directer, Office of Economic and Worldorce Development {OFWDY: - Dan Combs, CBD Secretary, Fillmore Center/Laramar
Ary Cohen, Director of Neighborhood Business Development, QWD Nikki Szeto, Acting Treasurer, Webster Towers
Lisa Pagan, Project Manager, OEWD : Rev. Floyd Trammel, West Bay Commuity Center
Katerina Viltanueva, Project Manager, OEWD Netsanet Alemayehu, Board Member, Sheba's Lounge
Captain Ann Mannix, Sar Francisco Police Department, Northesn Station Kaz Kajimura, Board Member, Yoshi's kazz Club
Sergeant William Griffin, San Francisco Police Department, Northesn Station: " Sheryl Davis, Board Membes, Mo Magic
Moharmed Nuru, Depusy Director, San Francisce Department of Puslic Works .
Alex Murilto, Pulilic Affairs Gffise, San Francisco Department of Public Werks QUTGOING BBARD GF DIRECTORS, 2002
Liz Lerma, Acting Superintendent, San Franciscs Bureau of Urban Forestry Andy Chol
Fred Blackwell, Direclor San Francisco Redevelopment Agency (SFRDA} Jenny Lim
Stephen Maduli-Williams, Deputy Director, SFRDA Joha Hadson
Gaynel Armstrong-McCusn, Project Manager, SFRDA :
Ricky Tijani, Senior Development Assistant, SFRDA : " 1aff Fishant : e D
Majeid Crawfosd, Board Member, Brothers for Change Jﬁﬁ;:;:: : r;;;li’;ﬁfﬁ;ﬁf;i?g:;?tgﬁgtm

Erris Edgerly, Board Member, Brothers for Change Fitlmore District Propesty Owners and Merchant
Jenny MicNulty, Executive Director, Urban Selutions ‘ _,p v ans

Heten Branham, Dir, of Smali Business Services, Urban Solutlons
Cynthia Traina, ¥raina FR

Ellen Seehold, Seebold Marketing

Keith Potter, Keith Potter Design

Andy Welfe, RMKS
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$ila and the ﬁfréi&nk Exp'érience' atthe
2609 Fillmore lazz Festival :

Pete Eséovede and

family performing at Yusf}i's San Francisco,
photo: Chuck Gee ‘

'ﬂan'wr”a Hﬁécurla ﬁeﬁfnrmfﬁg at '
The Fillmore Auditorinm.
_photo: analogrebels.com

. Yoshi's and The Fillmore Auditorfum

performance posters are collected by -

music and art lovers all over the world.




o it Harlem of the '_West phote exhibtion
: e e e at the lazz Heritage Center.
: * An icen painting on display inside-.

St. John Coftrane Ghureh

" Fillmore GBD has created 2
rack brochure and it was distributed
in 20190 at visitor information locations
throughout the city.

Festival gosrs Fisten o performers on the Eddy Stage at the
7010 Fillnore Fazz Festival

Hat Pocket performing in the lounge at -
1300 en Fillmore.

~ Broken Social Scene performing at The Fillmore Auditorium.
photo: analogrebels.com .

‘ \ake Shimahukuro on stage at Yoshi's
- 8an Francisee.
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* | Sty din'the Fmare Dieitetfor .
wallada pendehl Ay

Learn more about The Fitlmore District: our ﬁue' music venues, our merchants, events and. .
community organizations... and the wark of the Fillmere CBD by visiting us nzs!me at
www_thefillmoredistrict.com.

THE FILLMORE
1290 Fillmore Street Suite 104

San Francisco, CA 94115

(415) 346-5299 -
mfn@theﬂlimored:smct com

WWW. thefrﬂmered;strlct com -

' 'facebonk com/T her!ImoreD:stnct
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Michael A. Sulpizio

Certified Public Accountant
1419 Burlingame Ave, 2™ Floor
Burlingame, CA 94010

May 5, 2010

Board of Directors

Fillmore Jazz District Commumly Assomatlon of San Francisco
1290 Fillmore Street, Suile 104

.San Francisco, CA 94115

I have reviewed the accompanying staternent of financial position of the Fillmore Jazz District
Community Association of San Francisco (a not-for-profit organization), as of December 31,
2009, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, in
accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Al information included in these financial
statements is the representation of the management of the Filimore Jazz. District Community
Assoc;anon of San Francisco, :

A review consists prmmpa!ly of mqulries of company - pcrsonnel and. analyt:cal procedures
applied to financial data. It is substantially less in scope than an audit in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion
regarding the financial statements taken as a whole, Accordingly, I do not express such an
opinion.

Based on my review, I am not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in confonmty with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Michael A. Sulpizio /7

-pagelofl-
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Fﬂ}more Jazz Distriet Community Association of San Francisco
Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

Assets: -

Cash and cash equivalents $165,925 $96,123

Furniture & equipment C 6,264 - 6,264
Total assets: 3172189 - $102,387
Liabilities and net assets:

Deferred tax receipts N T L Y )

Accounts payable - 18,270 $45.465

Total liabilities: 165,541 . 45,465
Net assels;, o

‘Unrestricted ' 6,648 56,922

Temporarily restricted

Permanently restricted
Total net assets: ' . 6,648 56,922

$102,387

Total liabilities and net assets: - $172,189

The accompanymg notes are an integral part of' these ﬁnanc;a! statements
Sce the accompanymg accountant 5 repcrt -

- -page 1 of 4- ':
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_Fillmore Jazz District Community Association of San Francisco
Statement of Activilies
Year Ended December 31, 2009

Changes in unrestricted net assets:

| { paption:
Revenues, gains, and other support: o A
Property assessiments : . $312,332 ”:9%%’{}%’1?6%1'%
Grants 16,000 == §35, 00000
Other investment income ' 979
Total unrestricted revenues: 329311
Expenses: ' a
Decorations 11,656
Street cleaning T 144,440
- Marketing & promotion : 70,280
Furnishing maintenance - 13,895
Website ' 1,390
Liability & property insurance S 2,671
Legal fees 57,734
Salary & benefits 41,607
Accounting fees SR ' 10,763
Special events : . 8,863
Rent = ' . 2,700
Office expenses 4,163
Outside Contract Services 8,713
Other operating expense T
Total expenses ‘ 379,385
Decrease in unrestricted net assets: - - 50,274
Decrease in net assets: 50,274
Net assets at beginning of year: ' - 56,922 .
Net assets at end of year: . ‘ 36,648

' The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
See the accompanying accountant’s report.

-page2of4d-
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Fillmore Jazz District Community Association of San Francisco
Statement of Cash Flows
“Year Ended December 31, 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from property assessments $459,603
Cash received from grants: , 16,000
Interest and dividends received 979
- Cash paid to employees and vendors . (406,780)
Net cash provided by operating activities: 69,802

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of capilal assets
Net cash used by investing activities:

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents: 69,802
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year: 96,123

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year: . 3 165,925

i The accompanymg notes are an integral part of thesc fi nancral statemenls
" See the accompanymg accountant’s report.. - -

Coobos o
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1.

Fal}more Jazz District Community Association of San Franc:sco
Notes to financial statements
Year Ended December 31, 2009

The Fillmore Jazz District Community Association of San Fraucisco is a Community
Benefit District that was authorized on August i5, 2006 by the San Franmsco Board of

' Supew:sors and has a five-year term.

Funding is provided by special assessments levied on pmpemes located within the
district.

During 2008 the Association became mvolved in a legal proceeding with a former
employee relating to his termination. This matter, if adversely decided or settled by the
Association, may result in a liability material to the Association’s financial condition or
results of operations. No accruals have been made for this legal proceeding as 12/31/09.

- page 4 of 4 -
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Fillmore Jazz District Community Association of San Francisco
1290 Fillmore Street, Suite 104 -
San Francisco, CA 94115

May S, 2010

Michael A. Sulpizio

Certified Public Accountant
1419 Burlingame Ave, 2™ Floor
Burlingame, CA 94010

Dear Mr. Sulpizio:

We are providing this letter in connection with your review of the statement of financial position
and related statements of Activities, and cash flow of the Fillmore Jazz District Community
Association of San Francisco as of December 31, 2009, and for the years then ended for the
purpose of expressing limited assurance that there are no material modifications that should be
made to the statements in order for them to be in conformity with generally accepted accounting

~principles. We confirm that we are responsible for the fair presentation in the financial -

statements of financial position, results of operatmns, and cash flows in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. :

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are
material. Items are considered material, regardiess of size, if they involve an omission or

misstatement of accounting information that, in the l:ght of surrounding circumstances, makes it

prabable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed
“or influenced by the omission or misstatement,

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of May 5, 2010 the following
represéntations made to you during your review:

1. The financial statements referred to above are faxrly presented in conformity wzth generally
accepted accounting principles. .
2. 'We have made available to you all
a. Financial records and related data.
b.Minutes of the meetings of stockholders, directors, and commlttees of directors, or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.
-3. There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting
records underlying the financial statements.
4, We acknowledge our responsibility to prevent and detect fraud

b

management or others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial
statements, mcludmg any communications received from empioyees f‘ormer employees or
others, _ .

6, We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying amounts or

" Fillmore Jazz District I - letfe'r.doe_ - page 1 of 2- L

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affectmg the entity mmlvmg”

N



classification of assets and liabilities.
7. There are no muaterial losses (such as from obsolete inventory or purchase or sales
commitments) that have not been properly accrued or disclosed in the financial statements.
8. There are no
‘a. Violations or possible viclations of laws or regulations, whose effects should be
considered for disclosure in the finaneial statements or as a basis for recoramg
a loss conlmgency
b.Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has adwsed us are probable of
assertion that must be disclosed in accordance with Finaneial Accountmg
Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 5, dccounting for Contingencies.
c.Other material labilities or gain. or loss contingencies that are requlred to be
accrued or disclosed by FASB Statement No. 5.
9. The organization has satisfactory.title to all owned assets, and there are no. liens or
encumbrances on such assets, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.
10. We have complied with all aspects of coniractual agreements that would have a material .
effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.
11, The following have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements:

a. Related-party transactions, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers, leasing
arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to
related parties.

b. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the company is contmgently liable.

‘¢. Significant estimates and material concentrations known to management that are
required to be disclosed in accordance with the AICPA’s Statement of
Position 94-6, Disclosure  of Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties.
[Significant estimates are estimates at the balance sheet date that could change
materially within the next year. Concentrations refer to volumes of business,
revenues, available sources of supply, or markets or geographic areas for which
events could occur that would significantly disrupt normal finances within the next
year. |

12, The organization is a not-for-profit organization based on the laws of the state,
13. The organization is a nontaxpaymg entity based on the rules and regulations of the Internal
Revenue Service, -

To the best of our knowledge and belief, no events have occurred subsequent to the statement of
financial position date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or
disclosure in the aforementioned financial statements.

We have responded fully and truthfully to all inquiries made to us by you dunng your
review.

Jeff Eichenfield, Executive‘ D_irector Date

Fillmore Jazz District II - letter.doc - page 2 of 2 -
508
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Fillmore Jazz District Community Association
2008 Narrative Report

‘Revenune
The district received $299,814 1n total assessments in 2008.

The CBD was awarded a Maﬂceting Grant from OEWD to cover costs aésOciated with
development of website and district brochure.

In addition, the CBD was awarded a $31,337 district beautification grant from the City’s
Community Challenge Grant program to cover costs associated with purchase of benches
-and planter boxes design and installanon of street banners No funds have been expended

as of 12/31/08.

Programs

. District Identity and Streetscape Improvement

" Marketing
An annual ad was purchased in WHERE Magazine, a travelers guidebook, magazine and
map publication with local expertise and global reach to over 100 destinations
worldwide. Other ads were placed with local publications.

Holiday Street Lights
The CBD purchased street pole lights from Post to Golden Gate. They were installed and
maintained by vendor Devinish.

Website | .

The CBD hired Chen Design Associates who provided logo design, business cards,
letterhead and envelopes. The CBD also worked with them on website development and
programming. The new website address is www.fillmorejazzcbd.org.

Public Rjghts of Way and Sidewalk Operations

Street Cleaning and Maintenance

The CBD continues to have a contract with Cleanscapes for street cleaning, graffiti
removal, trash removal and other duties to maintain cleanliness in the district. The CBD
monitors the vendor's coniract performance and streetscape conditions in all zones in the
District.

Streetscape Capital Repairs/Maintenance -

The CBD is monitoring DPW and SFRA progress towards completing needed streetscape
repairs and maintenance for the District. DPW and SFRA are negotiating terms of $1.8
million Capital Improvement and Maintenance Plan for the District.
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Beautification — Community Challenge Grant

The CBD is working with Sharon Olken from Gateway High School to solicit student
designs for District street banners. A contest award of $220 was allocated from the
budget for the winning entry. The CBD is negotiating banner productlon and installation
costs with vendor AAA Barnner and Flag.

Administrative/Corporate Operations

The Executive Director, Neil Trama was hired on May.17, 2007 to implement and
manage the CBD Management Plan. The Plan includes managing the performance of the
vendors contracted with the CBD to clean, beautify, market and promote the Jazz District
+ and maintain general streetscape order.

At the July 2008 CBD Board meetmg, Mr. Trama was suspended with pay. On August 1,
2008, Mr. Trama filed a complaint with the CA Labor Commissioner against the CBD
Board for retaliatory suspensmn and unsafe working conditions. The CBD has retained
legal counsel under its insurance coverage As of December 31, 2008 the complamt is
pendmg resolution.

The Board elected pennanent officéers in October 2008. This included new board
members Gennie Lim and Dan Combs. Removed from board were Jerome. Berg and
Agonofer Shifferaw. -

N



Fillmore Jazz District Community
Financial Statements
For the month and year to date ended December 31, 2008

(unaudited)

CONFIDENTIAL
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- 4:51 PM
01/29/09 S L
Accrual Basis

ASSETS
Current Assets
CheckingiSavings’
First republic Savings
g First republic Bank Checking
Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
reimbursable Challenge Grant
thai Ofther Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Furniture and Equipment -
Funiture and Equipment Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Furniture and Equipment

Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liahifities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Total Accounts Payable

Credit Cards
Visa Credif Card CBD
Total Credit Cards

Other Current Liabilities
Accrued liability

Total Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity

Unrestricted Net Assets

Net tncome
Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

limore Jazz District Communityﬁ-t

Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2008.

Dec 31, 08
SRR P

39,696.95
.57,026.21
96,123.18

1,034.17
1.034.17,

97,157.33

10,404.67
-7,770.55
2,634.12 -

l

2,634.12

T

99,791.45

282481
2,824.81

10.00
10.00

I

42,630.00
42,630.00

45,464 .81
. 45,464.81
84,784.67
-30,458.03

54,326.64

| 99.761.45

CEE L
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Mmm mw,.w Fillmore Jazz District Community

RecrustBesls oo Profit & Loss
January through Decembar 2008

Jan 08 Feb 08 Mar 43 Apr 08 May 08 Jun 08 JuiCE b.cc o8 Sap 05 Det o8 Nov §8 Dec 0§ TOTAL
ot o SR —————
Ordinary income/Expansa
Income !
Chy Treasury . 183,758.28 Lrde) D00 115,808.85 600 RELN B 400 57.50 880 000 6.08 0.08 289,815.53
invastments . . . :
' imerest-Savings, Shartterm 0 144.13 11348 - 113,58 28.44 51.39 23,16 0.08 0.00 185.55 574.66 44434 83.25 1,503.28
Totalinvestments 15433 113.43 131385 84.24 N 51.33 8336 0.0 0.00 .mwm.m_..m. 574.66 444.34 mw.m..m.. 1,803.25
Totalintome 163,802 99 113.48 Ry Fce-i:3 11588438 9139 276.98 880 158 19555 ST446 44,34 53.26 301,716,852
Bxpense .
Harkating o008 00 .00 ‘0.00 0.0 12,488.18 060 520,00 275,50 103600 S20.08 0.00 14,821.68
Sponsorship ~50.00 0.00 .00 000 o.on o.00 .08 o000 . 0.00 .00 8.00 .00 -50.00
Business Expenses . R
Hollday Siroat ighis 000 [X .08 6.00 840 000 8.00 axe 0.00 0.00 2330000 8.002.00 32,100.00
Street Seape 12,180.00 12,180.00 12,180.08 12,180.00 215000 1238000 12,180.00 12,180.00 12, 180.00 1218050 12,130.00 12,180.08 .E_m_amawm " M
Totst Business Expenses 12, 18000 12,180.00 12,180.06 12.180.00 12,180.00 1218080 1218000 12.150.00 12,180.00 12,8480 ©35,280.08 2448000 178,260,068
Fayrali Expenses . .
Denta} axpenses 110.08 -110.80 ) O.mo 200 11000 .00 0,00 0.08 0.00 0.8 Q.00 Q.60 116.00
Salaties . ) B,923.10 £615.40 451540 4.815.40 HB15.498 451540 6.823.,10 4.815.40 461540 A815.40 481540 £,922.10 §2.307.50 )
Healh Inswrance 523.00 553.28 52300 Sis0 £75.00 575.00 E15.08 575.00 57500 575.00 oo oo 552420 -
Payroll processing faes 16500 70.60 9708 000 T0.00 70.60 105,08 70.00 0 70.80 .0 000 Barps
Bayroll Taxes 227,31 35639 as3.08 353.08 353.08 5366 525,62 1.453.90 353.08 353,06 355,08 528.62 5,16040
Workers Comyp Insurance 0.09 .00 9,00 0.63 1,054.00 .09 9.0 .09 0.60 2,00 6.00 35,00 1,088.00
._-o.m_,m»w.au Expansas 8,488.41 B.464.99 5,588.48 561348 §,777.48 5813.48 8,13272 571430 5613.48 £.813:48. 5,038,468 155772 76,236.50
FacHitles and Equipment ) .
Expensed Equipment . 18253 oo - 0.00 .00 048 0.60 400 02 2400 0,00 8.08 0.00 " 192,80
Propanty insurence &80 S00 860.00 .00 000 6.00 . 068 080 200 0.00 800 o0 £800.00
* Parking, Uthitfes 000 21758 147.68 17.68 0.06 168.07 0.00 0.50 0.00 800 0.00 0.09 812,32
Totai Faclitles and Equipmeant 162,80 Z17.68 947,68 TIES 0.0 168.07 L] L0 0.0% oo 0.08 0.00 1598528
Operations
._..a,mnuamu. Telerommunicatizns 13231 15270 2237 142,87 305.40 268.31 139,38 44.33 441,43 20,95 2088 20.85 2,014.08 N
Internat 118.05 S5.08 95.00 8500 502 95.08 2007 6334 .00 0.00 | oeg b.00 653.38
Postags, Malling Service 3Ts o.00 B2t} . 080 14940 050 17200 0.00 3t 600 - 22640 7 000 1,360.55
Printing and Copying 400 400 16.99 . 185825 . aed 0.00 " 000 28 B 000 0.00 .00 aes  ueirae
Supplfes N 26325 . 408 ar1oa 0.0l 196.53 800 . 000 040 0.0 4.00 .00 30758 104438
Waebshia .05 4750.00 0.60 9268 4.750.00 o.08 8.0 000 0.00 o.00 8.50 108688 10,678.53
" insuranca ~ Liabiay, Eand O .08 405.00 .60 | 925,05 2.00 .00 .00 0.80 0.00 000 - .00 0.00 1,330.0¢
Total Oparations . 520.38 5.442.70 658.78 285157 549533 38351 30238 06T 125144 20,95 24035 141533 18.689.17
Cantract Services -
Azeounting Fess 8.0 600 LEH000 200 $00.00 3.885.00 1,825.00 182.50- 375.00 0.00 1.525.00 LIBTEE - 11,085.80
Graat Weitlng Foas 00 1,500.00 2.480.00 0.00 i3 1,500.80 a.08 D0 .00 .20 800 000 5,450.00
Lepal Fees .00 . GO0 852,00 . 40400 1,145.00 166600 1,680.00 407580 A LA £.00 3.495.00 2,256.00 18,887.00
Cutslde Contract Serviess 0es - .00 $.00 £00.00 0.00 080 0.00 - 0.00 A77.47 0.60 -+ 155376 2,357.31 481604
Tolal Contract Services fiXis) LE00.00 542,00 80400 154500 FAETX: 3.505.00 4,268 50 3,938.07 0.08 857175 584081 4027014
Travel aad Meatings -
Buslness mozls and 800 migs 12631 -119.82 T27E5 - £76.62 4B.40 48.20 800 0.50 GOD i1 Boo 4.00 488,45
Conterence, Convantion, Maeting 35500 G.00 6.00 0.08 o.00 b0 000 .80 o0 - i %e] 8.00 650.00 100000
Traval - 0.00 <200 552.00 2208 17,25 Q05 1000 o890 23.00 000 25.00 0.00 44.25
‘Traval aad Mestlags - Other ) 0.0 8.0 000 5.00 25.50 0.60 0.00 0.00 0.9% 0.00 0,00 2.60 299
Totai Travet and Mestings 70,3t -121.82 - B¥E2S 298,02 83.85 4020 10.00 0.0 23.00 - 009 25.00 B50.00 217261
Gther Types of Evpenses - N _
BankFPaes 8,09 1860 200 260 27.00 11 .00 000 .00 o0 8.00 0.8 4700
Filing and other Feas . R 0.68 603 .00 800 . bao 200 4.00 200 0.0 7508 .00 .00 7508
Oer Costs 39,55 5.60 8.00 0,00 8.00 .00 .06 .08 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 - A7.55
Total Othet Yypes of Expenses 3855 16.00 2.00 208 2280 §.60 0.00 .08 0.00 T5.0 0.60 0.50 39,55
Tote? Expense ) - 21,831.53 24,719.75 24,995.29 2152878 26,258,368 38.049.22 24,135.10 23763.47 23,281.48 18,816.43 47,688.59 A5.643.88 232,174 B5
Het Ordinsry ncome 162,070.88 -24.808.27 -24,681.41 03,585,863 <25,126.97 37,774 24 -24,132.10 -23.710.97 -23,084,94 ~I8344.77 -A7, 24,25 -18,550,60 ~30.458.03
Net income I£2,070.85 ~24,E08.27 -24.881.41 93,385.63 ~26,126.97 3777424 241G -23,710.97 +23,084.84 AEMAT! 4724425 -36,590.6% =20,458.03
. e i I et AN ok o A L . - - S A 0 1]
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452 FM K] Fillmore Jazz District Community

s

" 19109 T ) i
Accrual Baslg ’ . Profit & Loss by Class L
January through December 2008
ABMIN is| .'S0B0 Unclassified TOTAL X . (
Ordinary IncomalExpenss ’ ’ : ;
Income .
GCity Treaswry £.00 0.00 0.00 296,813.53 293,813.53
Investments -
interest-Savings, Short-lerm CD 0.00 0,00 000 1,603.29 1,803.20 C ;
Tolal Investments B,0e .00 .00 1,903.26 $,803,20 ‘
“Total income i 0.00 0.0¢ 000 301,716.82 301,746.82
Expense
Marketing 2 . 0,60 14,821.68 G.00 0.60 14,521.66
Sponzership 0.00 -56.00 £.00 0.o0 .\ ~50.00
Business Expenses - :
Holiday Sireet lights ) 0.00 0.00 32,100.00 G.00 * 32,100.00
Street Scape . 6.00 0.00 145,160.00 0.00 446,168.00 -
Total Business Expenses £.00 0.00 178,260,600 0.00 478,260.00
Payroll Expenses . - . -
Dental expensas 1Moo .00 {.00 0.00 110.60
_ Satariay - 15.877.90 34,1584.00 15,575.00 0.0¢ 62,307,090
Health Insurance 1,466.280 2,812.00 1,4085.00 0.00 5,824.20
Payroll processing foos 234.25 468,50 23425 .00 037.08
Payroll Taxes 1,542.40 3.084.00 1.542.00 5.00 6,168,40
Workers Comp Insurance 273.00 54500 271.00 0.00 1,085.00
Total Payroll Expenses . 18,143.75 38,083.50 19,620.25 .00 76,236.50
Facllities and Equlpmen .
Expensed Equipmaon] 182,90 0.00 0.00 0.00 ©182.90
Property fnsurance 800.00 T o000 0.60 . 0.00 BD0.0G
Parking, Utilitias ' 512,32 | . 000 - 000 6,00 61252
Total Facilities ahd Equipment 1,595.22 6.60 0.00 .00 1,695.22
Operations -
Teleph Telecor ication 2,014.08 2.00 G.o0 - 000 2,014.09
Internet 653,30 0.00 0.00 T 653,39
Postage, Mafiing Service 1,360.56 Q.0 0.00 0.06 1,360.56
Printing and Copylng 18.99 1,588.25 2,60 0.00 1,817.24
Supplles 736.85 0.00 307.50 © 009 1,044.36 - ' .
Website ’ 000 . 1067083 0.00 ©.00 10,678.53
tnsurance - Liabllity, E and O 1,330.00 0.06 0.00 .00 1,330.00
Total Operations 6,113.89 12,277.78 307.50 9,60 18,699.17
Coniract Services .
Actounting Fees 11,085.00 0,00 .00 0.0¢ 14,085,00 . . .
Grant Writhg Fees 5,480.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 5480.90 . T
Legal Foes 18.887.00 0.00 0.00 . 600 18,887.00 - ' :
Duiside Contract Services 3,208.14 1,640,060 0.00 .00 4,818,144
Total Contract Services 38,660.14 1,510,080 000 ) d.on 40,276.14
Trave! and Maetings . . :
Business meals and BOD migs . 498,46 2.00 C.00 ’ 0.80 498.46 .
Conferance, Canvention, Meeting 750.00- 250.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 !
"Travel 10725 53100 0.00 - 0.08 544,25
Travel and Meetings - Other " 2080 0,08 2,00 000 - 2090
Total Trave! and Meatings -1,385.61 787.00 .00 4.00 2,57261
Other Types of Expenses : . i ) . . .
Bank Fees ' 47.00 0.08 . 0.00 0.00 47,00 I : w
Flling and other Fees ' 75.00 200 .00 0.00 75.00 ' : : i -
Other Costs ' 47.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 47.56
Total Other Types of Expenses . 169.55 0,00 0.00 0,00 . 169.55
Totat Expange L 67 058 15 BT509.84  1g7,508.75 B0 232,748
Mzt Ordinary ncome . _ ’ -67,068.16 . -67,509.84 -197,595.75 301,716.82 ~30,450,03
Metincome : - -67,068.18 -87,509,%4 ~197,596.75 301,716.82 . -30,458.03
. Class tode 'as a percentage of total expenses 20.2% 203% - 59.5% . 0.0% 100.0%
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. RO PM - Filhmore Ja‘zz‘ District Community (

o .
Ao Bosis : ‘ Profit & Loss-
December 2008
. Dag 08 Jan -Dec 68 o : !
Ordinary Ingome/Expense )
Income . '
'City Treasury 0.00 298,813.53
invostmeants .
Interest-Savings, Shori-term CD - 5326 $,903.29
Total Invesiments 53,26 . 1,003,290
Total Income 53,26 301,716.82
Expense
Marketing 000 14,621.66 '
Sponsorship [e13]3] -50.00
Business Ex{)anses
. Holiday Street lights 8,800.00 32,900.00
Stroet Scape 12,180.00 146,1606,00
Totaf Business Expanses 21,1B0.00 178,260.00
Payroll Expenses .
Bental expenses 0.08" . 110.00
Salarias o 592316 . 62.307.90
Haaith nsurance - 0.00 5,624.20
Payroll processing fees 70.04 g37.00
Payroll Taxes £29.62 B,168.40
Workers Comp Insurance 35.00 1,088.00
Total Payroll Expenses 7.687.72 76,236.50
Faclities and Eqﬁipman!
Expensed Qquipﬁwnt 060 182,80
Froporty Insurance 000 800.00
Parking, Uiiities 0.60 612,32
Toial Facliities and Equipment 0.0 1,595.22
Operations
Telephone, Telecommunications ) 20.95 ) 2,014‘09'
Internel . .00 B53.39
Postage, Mailing Service G.00 1,360.56
Printing and Copying ) .00 1,617.24
Supplies . 307.50 1,044.36
Website . '4,0B6.88 10,679.53
insurance - Liabltit}, Eand O 9.00 1,330.00
Fotai Operations 1,416.33 18,699.17
Contract Sorvices
Accounting Fees 1.187.60 11,085.00
Gram Writing Faes 0.00 5,480.00
Legal Fees - 2,266.00 18,8B7.00
' Oulside Contract Services ' 2,387.31 4,818.14
Tolat Contract Services 5,840.6814 40,270,14
Travel and Meetings
Business meals and BOD migs . - b.Ooo 468.46
Conference, Conventlon, Mesting B50.00 4,060,060
Travef 0.00 644,25
Travet and Meeilngs - Qthar 0.00 29,60
Total Travel and Meetings 650,00 2,172.61
Other Typa§ of Expenses
Bank Fees 000 47,00
Fiilng and cther Fess . 0.00 75400
Other Costs 0.50 47.55
Total Other Types of Expenses 0.00 189.55
Total Expense 36.643.86 332,174.85
Wt Ordinary income +36,580.60 -30,458.03
Net ncome -36,590.60 3045803
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e : ot Filimore Jazz District Community
P Statement of Cash Flows :

January through December 2008

Jan - Dec G8
OPERATING ACTIVITIES .
Net Income ~30,456.03
Adjustments to reconcHe Net income
to net cash provided by operations: .
retmbursable Cha!lenge Girant -1,034.17

"Accounts Payable ‘ -21,320.78
Visa Credit Card CBD : 40.00
Accrued lability T © 42,830.00
Net cash provided by Operating Activities ’ -10,172,99
INVESTING ACTIMITIES
Furnfture and Equipment:Funiture and Equipment Cost -2,634.12
Net cash provided by Investing Activitles -2,634.12
Net cash increase for perlod -12,867.11
Cash at heginning of pertod } ) , 10!?.930.2?"
Cash at end of parlod , ' : 96,123.16
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i ‘ i Amount | Filimore Jazz Distric Community Assoc - 2008 Narrative Repost . }

Total A it Revenue| $§ 289,814 iTotal assessments received from (:uty Treasury for 2008

in 2008 the CBD was awarded a Marketing Grani from MCED 1o cover costs associated wlth development of website and
18 28,000 jdistict brochure. An inflial Draw down of Grant funds will be submitted in eariy 2009 after a preliminary marketing plan is
Non-Tax Funds prepared. , )

) In 2008 the CBD was awarded a $31,337 district beautification grant from CCSF to cover costs associated with purchase of|

$ - 27,281 jbenches and planier boxes, design and installation of street banners. No funds have been expended as of T2/31/98. CBD

is working with Sharen Olken from Gateway HS o solicit student design of District street banners. $220 contest award

MNon-Tax Funds| atlocaled for winning eniry. CBD negotiating banner production and installation costs with Vendor AAA Banner and Flag.
investments| § 1,803 |interest eared lrom bank checking and money market accounts

Marketing: Annuai Ad purchased in WHERE Magazine, a lravelers guidebook, magazine and map publication with local

$ 14822 experfise and global redch o over 100 destinafions worldwide. Other ads were placed with local publications.

Markeling ad Promo)

Beaulification - Holiday Streed] ‘s 32100 :
fights| ! Purchased street pole fights from Post o Golden Gate, Instafied, and maintained under vendar contract with Devinish,
! : Conlract for Cleanscapes: CRD monitors vendor's contract pedormance and streetscape conditions in all Zones in District.
Streetscape Capital Repalis/Maintenance: CBD monltoring DPW/SFRA progress towards completing needed streetscape
repairs and mairenance for the District, DPW and SFRA negotiating terms of $1.8M Capitat Improvement and
Malntenance Plan for the District. Beautification Challenge Grant; CBD communicaling with Sharen Otken from Gateway
HS to solicit student design of District street banners, $220 contest award allocated for winning entry, CBD negotlating
Street Scape banner production and installation costs with Vendor AAA Banner and Flag.
The Executive Director Nell Trama was hired 51 7/07 o implernent and manage the CBD Sesdvee Plan, The Plan includes
managing performance of Vendors contracted with the CBD fo clean, beautify, market and promote the Jazz District and
maintain general streetscape order. (See Executive Director's Reporl of Activities). At the July, 2008 CBD Board meefing,

$ 146,160

37
$ 762 Mr. Trama was suspended with pay. On 8/1/08 Mr. Trama filed a complaint with the CA Labor Commissioner against CBD
Executive Direcotr Board for refalliatory suspension and unsafe working conditions. CBD has retained legal counsel under its insurance
SalaryBenedits coverage. As of 12/31/08 the complaint is pending resolution,

183 |Expensed Fquipmend
800 |insurance
612 |Parking, Utilities

2,014

Expensed Equipment] $
Property Insurance| §
Parking, Utiities| $
Telephone, % .
Telgcommunications Telephone, Telecommunications
Infemeti § 653 |Infemet
Posiage, Mailing Service! § 1,361 |Postage, Mailing Service
3
3
$
$
$

Printing and Copying 1,617 {Printing and Copying
Suppiies, 1.044 iSupplies

10 G?QA Hired Chen Design Associates whe provided logo design, bsns cards, letterhead and eavelopies 1000 gty each and website

Website development and programming. Websile address is: www.fillmorejazzebd.org

Filed ctaim for Director's and Officer's coverage refated fo Trama complaint. Insurer has. assigned attommey Tracy Lemon for
CBD legal counsel under D/Q Coverage

11,085 Laura Kelly for monthly accounting and financlal statements. Michael Sulpizio, CPA for budget review, Crosby & Kaneda

. Accounting Fees Tax preparation

1,330
Insurance - Liabilty, E and O !

3 5480 Christina Ryder hired to prepare Grant Applications, Grants applied Include: Challenge Bealtification Grant (awarded),
! Marketing Grant (awarded), Equis Foundation, National Gardening Association, Cal Coucil for the Humanities, James jrvine

Grant Wriling Fees! Foundation, Haas Jr. Fund, Tia Man Fund (mini-park beautification). See Executive Director's Report for status,

Retained Neill Boodrooks to advise CBD on management of Executive Direstor compiaint, Insurance claim and CA Labor

18 BBT |Comrnission. Algo retained Amy Rodriguez 1o advise board on with permanent board elections, By-law revisions and

$
l.egal Fees preparing written guidiines for conduct and procedural issues at board meeiings.
$ 4818 {Qutside Contract Services
Business meals and BOD) 3 498
s : Business meals and BOD migs
Board Meetings, Conferences, 3 1.000 Board elected permanent officers in October, 2008. Including new board members Geanie Lim and Dan Combs, Removed
. Convention, frome board were Jerome Berg and Agonofer Shifferaw
Travell $ 644 |Travel .
Travel and Meefings - Other| § 30 |Travel and Meetings - Other
Bark Feps AT |Bank Fees
Filing and other Fees 75 |Filing and other Fees .
) Other Costs] 48 |Other Costs
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Filimore CBD 2008 Financials and Narratwe
Chart of Accounts

Special District Benefits (ﬂSES)
Sidewalk Operations, Beautification and Order (SCBO) ' { 55%|

Regular sidewalk and gutter sweeping (five hmes per week in Benefit Zone 1)
Regutar sidewalk and gutter sweeping {four imes per week for Benefit Zone 2)
Regular sidewalk and gutter sweeping {four times per week for Benefit Zone 3)
Regular sidewalk and guttet sweeping ( four imes per week for Benefit Zone 4)

Quarterly sidewatk steam cleaning;
Spot steam cleaning as necessary,
Safe passage programs for visitors and employees;
Private security services;
Beautification; .
Decorations;
Supplemental trash removat in the public rights of way;
Removal of bulky items;
Graffiti removal;
Installation and maintenance of banners andfor decorations;
Tree and plant maintenance and planting;
' Equipment, supplies, fools;
Vehicle maintenance and insurance;
Salaries, benefils, payroll expenses related to maintenance staff and supervision;
Maintenarice of sidewatk furnishings;

i District Identity and Streetscape Improvements/Marketing and Promotions NN Py
']

{DISh

Special events;
Marketing and promotions strategies;
Personnel related to marketing and promotions;
Logo development and web site;
Pedestrian kiosks and way-finding signage system;
Public space plarming and implementation;
Farmer's market;

Walking map; -
Advertising;
H:siozlca! markers and public arf; and
Replacement and upgrading of street furnishings.

-[Administrative/Corporate operations [ 20%}

Siaff and administrative costs;
Insurance;
Office related expenses;
Financial reporting; and
Communications.
Contingency/Reserve - General Benefits (Surplus funds in this category, at the
conclusion of the fiscal year, may be transferred to other service categories
upon a vote of the Management Corporation Board of Directors).

10%|

Delinquencies due ¥ non-payment of assessmenis by property owners;
Hardship contributions; and
Unallocated reserves;

Total Uses:

SOURCES

_Property Tax Assessments| 95%
Grants| ‘

Donations] £
Fees|
In-Kind Contributions}
Total Sources:
Surplus/(Shortialfl) .

T
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Michael A. Sulpizio
Certified Public Accountant
1419 Burtingame Ave, 2™ Floor
Burlingame, CA 94010

December 21, 2009

Board of Direciors

Fillmore Jazz District Community Association of San Francisco
1290 Fillmore Stireet, Suite 104

San Francisce, CA 94115

| have reviewed the accompanying statement of financial position of the Fillmore Jazz District
Community Association of San Francisco {a not-for-profit organization), as of December 31,
- 2008, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, in
accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. All information included in these financial
statements is the representation of the managemem of the Fillmore Jazz District Commumly
Association of San Francnsco : -

A review consists principally. of inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures
applicd to financial data. It is substantially less in scope than an audit in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion
regardmg the financial statements taken as a ‘whole, Accordmg,!y, I do not express such an
opinion. :

Based on my review, I am not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Michael A. Sulpizio

-page 1 of | - : | ‘ '
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Fillmore Jazz District Commumty Association of San Francisco
Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $96,123  $108,930

Furniture & equipment : 6,264 - 2971
Total assets: ' $102,387 §116,701
Liabilities and net assets:

Accounts payable 545465 24.146

Total liabilities: - 45465 24.146
Net assets: ot

Unrestricted - 56,922 92,555

Temporarily restricted . ,

Permanently restricted
Total net assets: 56,922 92,555
Total liabilities and net assets: - 3102387 $116,70]

The accompanymg notes are an mteg,ral part of these fi nanc:al statemems
Sce the accompanymg accountant’ s report.

. -pagelofdii
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Fillmore Jazz District Community Association of San Francisco
Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Changes in unrestricted net assets:

Revenues, gains, and other support:

- Property assessments _ $299.814 -

Other investment income - 1903
Total unrestricted revenues: 301717
Expenses:. B : _ -

Holiday street lights . 32,100

Street cleaning - 146,160

Marketing & promotion 14,822

Contract services : _ 40,270

Website o B 10,680
~ Liability & property insurance - 2,130

Health insurance , . ' 5,624

Salaries _ ‘ ‘ 62,308

Payroll taxes ' _ 6,168

Travel & meetings expense _ 2,173
- Workers compensation insurance - 1,089

Telephone & telecommunications . 2,014

Other operating expense , 1,672
Other non-operating expenses: :

Loss on asset disposition 4,140
Total expenses : _ 337.350
Decrease in unrestricted net assets: : 35633
Decrease in net assets: 35,633
Net assels at beginning of year: : 92.555
Net assets at end of year: $56,922

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
See the accompanying accountant’s report.

. »pagé20f4m
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F illmore Jazz District Community Assoc;auon of San Francisco
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from properly assessments $299.814
Interest and dividends received 1,903
Cash paid to employees and vendors (311,890)
Net cash provided by operaling activities: ' (10,173)
Cash flows from investing activities: ' '
‘Acquisitien of capital assets (2,634).
Net cash used by investing activities: (2.634)
" Net increase in cash and cash equivalents: : (12,807)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year: 108.930
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year: $96,123

e The accampanymg notes are an mtegral part of thcse fi nancnai statements
See the accompanymg accountant’s report o
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Filimore Jazz District Community Association of San l mnusw
Notes to financial statements
Year Ended December 31, 2007

I The Filimore Jazz District Community Association of San Franeisco is a Community

Berefit District that was authorized on August 15, 2006 by the San Francisco Board of
" Supervisors and has a-five-year term.

2. Funding is provided by - speczal assessments levied on properties located within the
district,

3. During 2008 the Assomatwn becaine mvolved in a legal procecding with a former
employee relating to his termination. This matter, if adversely decided or settled by the
Association, may result in a liability material to the Association’s financial condition or
results of operations. No accruals have been made for this legal proceeding as 12/31/08.

e
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- San Francisco Fillmore Jazz Preservation District
o Commrunity Benefit Districs *
1410 Turk Streect

San Francisco, CA 94715
(415) 440-1830

April 24,2008

Mz, President and Members of the
San Francisco Board of Supervisors
City Hall .

1 Dr. Carlton Goodlett Place .

San Francisco, CA 94102

Re:  The San Francisco Jazz Preservation District Executive
- Director's Report of Activities for 2006 to 2007

Summary of the Within Report: .
This report is structured according to your guidelines. It begins with a survey of

assessment of its structures and fixtures. Attachments higiﬂi'gh!: elements of the report’
and are clearly identified here, : T

, The Executive Director’s job isn't desk-work function. He (or she) must spend 40
. to 60 hours each week attending to meetings that run from 9:00 AM to evening hours,
walking the district to monitor street cleaning and meet With residents and merchants,
confer with directors of other CBI)'s, the office of the mayor, the board of supervisors,
and many city and state agencies as well as accountants, grant proposal writers, and
various ofhers. ' '

. Allthe financial data is referred to in the report and produced as attachments. In
those papers are the proposed and actual budgets. A complete accounting is herein
delivered, ' . ' :

The Disfrict’s Boundaries And Major Features - o _ .

The Fillmore Jazz Preservation District's center spine is Fillmore Street from Post
Street South to Golden Gate Avenue with extensions to the side streets East to the
western side of Webster Street and West tq eastern side of Steiner Street. The distinctive
red brick sidewalks on Fillmore Street. eruilate sidewalks on Market Street,

-* A Community Benefit District pursuant to California Streets and Highway Code Section
36600 et seq. ‘ o
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Executive Director's Report
. April 24, 2008
Page 2

Adjacent to our district {5 the -upper ‘Fillmore CBD area, the Japan Town
community, McKinstry Pazk, the Hamilton Recreation Center, The Jewish High Schog],

the Jewish Community Library, the Sundance film avditorium  and its restaurants

(formerly the Kabuki movie theater),

Three companies own high rise apartment building in the district; the Fillmore
Center, Webster Towers and the Fillmore Heritage Center. Furfhey south is a high-rise
senior housing building. Four public squares and the Safeway store with its parking Tot
He within the district; the “blue” bridge on Fillmore Street spans Ceary Boulevard, the
Gene Shuitle Plaza, the Fillmore Center plaza across Fillmore Street from the Shuttle

' plaza, the mini park across from the Norfhern San Francisco Police station and it public
conference auditoritm, Seven “destination
food and enfertainment center, the 1300 restawrant, Rassellas, the Sheba Lounge, the
Boomy Boom Room, the Filtmore Auditorium and the West Bay Conferer_ice Center.
Various fast food restaurants, 2 barber shops and 2 beauty shops front on Fillmore Street
along with several Tavndries and clothing stores. The remiajnj g structures found in the

district are mostly residences, a non-treatment office of Kaiser Hospital, the new

Goodwill store at Post and Fillimore, a Pire Department station, a police station, the old
municipal railway sub-station, several chuiches and a big free standing McDonald

hamburger building with a substanitial parking Iot, a new spa at Geary and Steiner, two

churches, and a big Club One health facility with its olympic size swimoying pool.

Establishment And beginning Operation Of The CBD

The district was creafed on August 15, 2006 by the San Francisco Board of -

Supervisors with a mission to main cleanliness of iis streets and sidewalks, participate in
security for the district, provide public street lights anid promote ‘the ‘district by its
Resolution 462-06. With the help of Karen Ekland of the MJM Management Group

organizational efforts began in 2006, and before the year's end an interim board of -

directors was in place by October 18, 2006, The board meets every 35 to 60 days in the

non charge Fillmore Centey's Pepper Conference Room.,  The board usually completes -

its written pre-meeting noticed agenda in about 2 % hougs under the direction of
president Paul Hymes. ‘Written notes of the board’s resolutions are’ distributed and

. those minutes are approved or approved as modified and majntained in the CBIYs -

mimatte book,

Peoblie comment i encouraged at each step of the agenda, -

Engagement Of An Execulive Director

Following a directive of the board of directors to give notice of its mtent to

- inferview candidates for Executive Director of the CBD a half dogen potential directors
were interviewed in April, 2007 by a special comnmitiee of the board.” The committee

presented the two candidates who led the pack, and by resolution the board au&oriﬁzed_ i

. P Y
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Executive Director's Report
April 24, 2008
Page 3 ‘

engagement of Neil Trama II as Executive Director at the May 17, 2007 meeting of the
CBD's board of directors, ' :

Activities And Planning Concerris Undertaken By The Execufive Director ,
The items provided below are often long-term Inatters from the issue’s first focug
through various stages some of which are concluded, but more aye still in transit.

" A. Swvey OF Conditions By The Executi:ve Directoxj On His Work Agenda
These tasks were undertaken by the Executive Director: - :

’*‘Patrolﬁng the district most of the week and listening to grievances expressed by
neighbors. .

much improved service, A $10,000 refund for poor prior work was paid
back to the district. ‘ '

*Examination of the damaged mural panels on the “blye” bridge.

“Initiated Social Services to attend to 4 poor mentally impaired homei,ess
person who had established herself and her shopping cart pilled with her
belongings at the focus point of Shuttle plaza, -

*Trees .
Examine, cotlnt, note needed repair or replacement of about half of the
district’s trees accompanied by a tree care specialist arborist.

*Irash Cans

Several trash cans were found to be damaged and need replacement
orrepair. City workers have rejected my request to fix or replace the
damaged c¢ans. See Attachment 1 for photos comparing the city’s
approved trash containers and the cans placed in the CBD's streets,
Please note the extensive problems about these trash cang in the next
section of this report.

“Street Lights : _
Bxamine the present street lights accompanied by a San Francisco
Department of Public Works employee who analyzed the lights and
found deficiencies listed below.
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Executive Director's Report
Apiril 24, 2008
Page 4

“lengaged a professional grant application writer who has. submitted
- several requests for funds. Two of those application brought-in over
$30,000 in approved grants. ' '

B. I have further advanced fhe concerns -our district in the following specific
matters:
1. Barly in January, 2008 1 1met with Captain Casciato, the new Captain of Northern

Police Station, These topic dominated our discussion:

2) Police foot patrols row send a message of safety in our neighborﬂood. |
b} A further guarantee of public safety by installation of security cameras is

along Fillmore Street in secure. Private property at an estimated cost of aboyt
$50,000 to $80,000, well within our budget..

<} Today 5 secuyity companies are active in our district, If may less expensive to
have single company to conduct these operations. If such a plan is adopted

each present operations beneficiary will make pro-rata coniributions to the.

cost. The CBD's share will be'a little less than one fifth (1/5) of the costs. To
implement this concept I met with two secunity companies and invited a
presentation at our February meeting. I will report to nmy board as
negotiations proceed. - o : , e

d) The Safeway parking lot and the retail businesses alorig Fillmore which front
on the parking lot but refuse to provide openings on the Fillmore Street side

of these businesses have been a bone of contention which I am hoping to see

my board as this project goes forward.

€} Captain Casciato liked my. idea for a horse-mounted patrol, but "ma:ny" |

logistical problems need to be resolved before that idea becores reality. .

I have developed an exceilént relationship with our local police department, (See -

attachment #2).

2. As you known, due to mistakes in the past, not the responsibility of present
"members of the Redevelopment Agency, the Redevelopment Agency leaves our district. ne
with six major reconstruction projects all of which demonstrate fundamenta] problems: - .

@) The brick sidewalks ‘on Fillmore Street” Weif_e: not cons&ﬁ&e_dfih_ confomuty .
- with all ‘brick sidewalks irn -this city including the sideWa}k_in frént"’of'the S

Coogs s
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FHillmore Heritage Center on the Fastern side of Fillmore Street. The correct
method of installing these sidewalks requires a thick layer of solid concrete
under the bricks with a dusting of sand to stabilize the bricks. A few weeks
ago repairs along the Eastern side just north of MeAllister Street adjacent to
the new Jubili frozen yogurt store required that the sidewalk and jtg -
bricks had to be torn up to accommodate repair to the sewer, It required

. temporary removal and replacements of the bricks. While the site wag open

we obtained photos of the condition under the bricks. The enclosed photo
(Attachmoent #3) shows that all along Fillmore Street no concrete was Jaid
under the bricks. Instead, a substandard contractor just tamped-down the
the dirty beige sand which underlies most of the Western addition, and laid
the bricks with no concrete substrate. The defect of . that negligent
construction is grossly apparent to all who walk down, this part of the street.
Areas of subsidence pock-mark the street creating a ftrip and fall hazard,
especially for our elderly population,

b) The street lamips the Redeveiopment Agency installed years ago along

Fillmore Street do not conforin to the city's structural plan. To begin, the
the lamps themselves are strange, cheép structares that give poor light.
They do not compare with the lights elsewhere in the city, and Mohammed
Nuzru, the director of the Departmment of Public Worlks (DPW), will not service

‘them because they are out of conformity with lights through the city, and DPW

does not have bulbs and other consumable parts to service these Ia'mps.
I'vefound a stop-gap by buying this year’s Christmas lights foi year round
use, at a modest cost. February 15, 2008 | visited with members of the -
Redevelopment Agency and a crew from the city’s Public Works Department
who inspected our street lights. They told me that ail the wiring, all the
-outlets, and all related hardware is “residential” grade. The uﬁderground
electrical conduit is of a narrow diameter, too small to accept industrial gage -
wiring. The DPW agreed to supply our CBD with an estimate to remove and
replace the lamps and all supporting wiring and equipment. Iwill report to
my board when I obtain that information. - 7 .

<€) The “Blue” bridge over Geary Street is a present eyesore and a target for

vandals. Broken glass panels cost about $10,000 each to replace. This is nota

the city plans to rebuild the sunken portion of Geary Street in our district,

- our board resolution o the Boagd of Supervisors may be appropriate for
- consideration at our next meeting to address this issue,

d) All the trash bins on our streets need to be replaced The bins acquired by the

Redevelopment Agency require keys to open them, but DPW does not have

3



Executive Director’s Report
Aprxil 24, 2008
Page 6

copies of these keys nor does DPW have parts to fix broken cans New trash
- cans that meet DPW's standards cost about $1,200 each. o

&) A substantial number of the trees along Fillmore Street are dead. Some trees

that are still alive are squeezed by steel enclosures too tight for growing trees,
Those enclosures need to be removed, and dead trees need to be replaced.

[have communicated these 6 problems to the Redevelopment Agency. Barly this
yeat a noon-time “inspection” was done by the agency. To date the Redevelopment
Agency has not yet agreed to fix these negligently defective created structures, but it

presently anticipates spending $1.9. million dollarsto remediate those 6 big deficiencies.

should make suit unnecessary.

3. The “wmini park” at Fillmore across from Ni orthern Station has been a child-hostile
venue for drag dealers and users whose drug use hypodermic syringes are often seen on
the ground at the edges of the patk as well as drunks who relieve themselves in the
bushes. (See attachment #4 which shows a man using the bughes to relieve himself),
Captain Casciato assured me that if the patk had a children’s climbing structure and was

otherwise made appropriate for families, Northern Police Station officers would enforce

4. In the past six months there E'has been an interest, in operating the Farmer’s
Market held on McAllister Street at Filliore i the Spring, summer and fall to be run all

not by their CBD. Thoge residents are not interested in perating our Farmer’s Market.
-We have an alternative, We have n_ow achieved a full year Farmer’s Market plan before .
the new plaza is finished. .CBD President Paul Hymes and I :iego'ciatéd‘ an all year
- around Farmer’s Market will begin-at the end of April, 2008 with additiorial vendors,
5  The swmmer Jazz Festival rin for the last few years has been 'ﬁnééﬁsfactory_

" Poor bands and Junk sales booths diminish the jazz heritage. T et with local business.

. people and Steve Restevo who ran the festival for several years.” We hammered-out an
Imiprovement plan for thig summer. I'm working on a better Jazz Festival for next year,

B
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6. Attachment number 5 is notification that our challenge grant application for
street furniture in the sumn of $27,000 has been granted. We earlier received a $5,000.00
challenge grant for plants and incidentals fo improve the Shetile plaza.

executive director and officers of the Japan Center which helps to coordinate our plans
with theirs. ) : ' :

7. I have developed a good working relationship with the upper Fillmore CBI's

8 Protectionof a District Merchant : ‘ : .
_ A $1.00 only store in the Geary-Post area of the district was threafened bya huge

chain’s efforts o install & sirmdlar but much large store at 1336 Post Street proposed-at the
_ June 5, 2007 meeting of the Redevelopment Agency. I attended and spoke against the
chain store. Their bid for 1336 Post Street was defeated by the agency. ‘

9. The Juneteenth celebration in Fillmore Street becamne a topic for concern in
which I intervened last year to redyce and upgrade presentations, , '

10. Officers and the Exécuﬁvé Director met to review the CBD's first budgét which
- was prepared by the offices of the mayor and Board of Supervisors with the help of the
"MJM group. : :

& Business Office Activities- 1 Pursued The Following Steps:

*Secured free office space subject only to Iﬁaying a small pro-rata sum
for heating and other sexvices.

"Secured excellent but well used furniture instead of buying new desks,
chairs, tables, rugs and the rest, '

“Setting-up banking relations

“Meeting and working with Northern Police Station’s Captain Casciato
about crime in the neighborhood, public offenses performed at the
Mini Park, and policing the Safeway parking lot. (We are stll waiting
For Safeway’s consent). '

“Acquiring a sole use laptop computer and a 4 function Xerox machine
to take data from a computer and print it, photocopy papers, scan
material for use in the computer, and accept and send fax messages.

*Coniract with an accountant for the CBD

*Contract for internet service -

535



| EBxecutive Director's Report
April 24, 2008
Page 8 ‘

*Attend to tax, mswrance, and other similar functions

*Attend meetings of all agencies that have matters of concern to the
district ' .

"Meeting with other CBD directors
*Attending conferences on subjects relevant to the Director's job

“Drafting checks payable to the CBD's suppliers for the signature of the
President and Treasurer . ,

. "Assisting the President and members of the board with preparation of
each board meeting’s agenda ‘ '

D. Report of Income and Expenditure : _
- Attachament Number 6 posts the actual 2007 income and expenses of the
District. (Compare the budget previously submitted and referred to
above which is also appended here). :

E. LongTerm Objectives . :

a) I bought surveillance camera entreprenieurs to 3 CBD meeting
to demonstrate their products and methods, It is anticipated that
proposals from such firms will produce an operator to established
between 6 and 8 or 10 cameras from the “blue” bridge down to the -
limit line of the district to curb violence and vandalism in the district.
The surplus in the 2007 budget achieved byo taining free rent, the. ,
free furniture and other benefits described above would be well used
for this purpose. According to one exhibitor those funds will be .
adequate to blanket the area with security cameras. B

b)) Presently fiv_e “security” companies dpérate in the district
engaged by Yoshi's, The Heritage center, The Fillmiore Center, Webster
Towers and Safeway. Corisolidation of these services and use of the

camera security system should result in substantial reductions for each -~

present user of the 5 present services when consolidation is achieved,
Tam working on this issue with the business proprietors involved, = "

¢) - The recent muni vs pedestrian injury at the “blug” bridge warns
- the city that the Fillmore Auditorium “band bus”, parking permits need
to be re-examined, Those buses obstruct the view of paurd drivers
- who need fo watch for pedestrians crossing the street. A better
place to park those monster buses is along Steiner Sreet, away from. .
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pedestrian zones.

d) Pres_ently no CBD oversees either MCKmS‘ery Park or the

Hamilton Recreation Center, The Fillmore CRD seeks an extension of
its boundaries to embrace these facilities which are of equal importance
to residents and outside users of these assets and by the Japan
Town population to be done in collaboration with the Japan Town
Community Council. Jf our CBD's boundaries are extended our
security camera system will be enlarged to protect those Jocations,

Because McKinstry Park has no advocacy group, it is the step
child of the Parks Department receiving the least funds for
improvement compared to all the restof the city’s parks. Today its
baseball diamonds which cccupy most of the park are venues for -
baseball teams in which few or none of the Players live near the park.
None of the recent park bond money will go to making McKinstry Park
into a real public recreation facility, instead the Park Department
intends to enhance the two baseball field fo benefit only down-town
baseball teams. That money would be better spent to build-up
activities for the people who live in the district, Now only about
10% of McKinstry is allocated to neighborhood uses.” Buteven that
sliver of land along Geary Boulevard has not been planned for people -
who live here. | o

Typical of our neglected CBD neighborhood McKinstry field has
no tennis -courts, no childyen’s play structures like the one at Alta
- Plaza a dozen blocks and a world away from our CBD, no bocce ball
court, few garden-vista chess playing areas, no barbeque grills, no
horseshoe pits, and no “off-the-leash” play area for the many dog
ownets who live in this neighborhood. For these reasong McKinstry
Park is of little use'to the neighbothood. Obviously i¥'s mission needs
to be réexamined by a neighborhood council including the CBD and
the Japan Town Council, after which the funds Yecently approved by’
the city’s voters can be spent to better gerve this neighborhood.
Thereis a feaver buflding in the neighborhood to do away with the
non-resident baseball stadiums and give this neighborhood a real
full size verdant park for most of the residents who have no cars and
need to be able to walk with their childien fo a family-centered-park.
Attachment # 7 outlines the work of 3 family oriented park committees
which emphasizes the need to replace baseball stadiums for non-residents
with family friendly meadows, The medel worth emulating is Alta
Vista park. where mmore than 150 people spread picnic blankets on.
warm days and there are no space-hogging baseball fields, Thig
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issue will become more prominent as we move closer to the next

election of supervisors. The present plan to waste the bond money on

baseball fields for people who don't live in the district continues to .
discourageé local -children and teenagers to wish they live in other parts

of the city which have parks as big a McKinstry but apportion those

parks to serve local resident. Our supervisor need to re-examine this

Issue of misallocated park funds.

d}  Negotiations are moving forward between the CBD with
the help of Lisa Pagan and the Redevelopment Agency to replace
the inappropriate street lights, the improperly conghracted brick
sidewalks, the idiosyncratic trash cans,. the damage “blue bridge”
mural (which can be protected from vandalism with security
cameras and video surveillance ‘warning signs at key locations on
the bridge), and remediation of the constricting tree girdles and
replacement of dead trees. . :

- Lexpect to write that most, hopefully all, the problems I've cited above will be
resolved before I make next year's repost.

Neil Trama Il
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Attachments.

Attachment No,

1

Compare the CBD's mapproved trash can

with the.city’s standard trash cans

Letter from Police Chief Heather Fong

Excavation of the brick sidewalks shown an
absence of the standard cement underlayment
beneath the bricks '

" A gentleman in the bushes is reliving his

bladder pressure -
Challenge grant approval for $27,000.00

Aécounﬁn_g_ _stateme;;fi‘té begmnmg with the
origiel budget forecast with the actual

.....

N eighboih{id

d Pazk Courigel N ewspaper
Article o S
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The CBD'S Dam
Trash Bin

Attachments No. 1
Trash Bins

aged o An Official

San Francisco
Trash Bin

540

TN



a POLECE'DEPARTMEN? '
CITY AND COUNTY. OF SAN FRANCISCO

THOMAS J. CAHILL HALLOF fUsTICE
850 BRYANT STREET

GAVIN NEWSOM SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94103.4601 HEATHER J FONG

: MA\'QR ' CHIEN OF POLICE

March 12, 2008

Neil Trama ll, Executive Director
San Francisco Fillmore Jazz Preservation District
1410 Turk Street o

- San Francisco, CA 94115

- Dear Mr. Trama:

Thank you for taking the time to write ar;d commend Captain Casciato of our
department, particularly, forthe pi‘éifé_ésiohéiism' as the Captain of Northern
Station. - LR R T Lo
Captain Casciato has noted your {éftef'éﬁd',a Eé;:iy of it Wi!}- be placed in his
personne! folder for future reference, -~ . o

Correspondence complimenting members of our départmént is always

appreciated.
Sincerely,
o e -._.fw;}/, -
HEATHER J. FONG!
- ‘Chfef of Police
HJIF/ma
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San Franciseo COMMUNITY CHALLENGE GRANT PROGRAM
Formerly the Neighborhapd Beautification Fund

February 19, 2008

Neit Trama

Fillmore Jazz Community Benefit 'Distrilct
1410 Turk Street

San Francisco, CA 04115

Dear Mr. Trama:

Community Challenge Grant Program Advisory Comi;ﬁttee. :
This award is for neighborhood greening and itmprovement i he
You will fecéive 2 contract phcist mthmthe rext two weeks ohtlin
g the necesiary paperwork required to estat

fith you during the mojths ahead Best wishes for

to working
project.

0

me

Sincerely, - - - LT R

Lanita Henriqu A G2 LR
Program Manager. AT S

. EDWIN M. LEE, city administrator T LANTTa HENRIQUEZ, progiaim managen

Office of the City Adwinisteator M e caen B Goodlelt Place  §

s § Gty and County of Sén Franciseen " v IRERR RN SRSy Gity Half, Ranm 482~ -

phone: ws) s54-an30 - -
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9209 AM ' ilmore Jazz District Community -
DUTTIOD , Filimore Jagz ty

Accrial Basts - Profit & Loss.
January theough December 2007

Jait - Dee 07
Ordinary Income/Expenso’
ncome
City Treasury 300951 .?9
Investments :
Interest-Savings, Shorderm oo | 174338
Tetat Invostntonts. 973380
Total lncome - 30288478
Expense
Bislness Expenses .
Businoss Registeatlon Feos 900,60
Hallday Streat Hghts 18,320.00
Seant Soape 118,380,00
Total Business Expensas 133,610,00
Gaaritable Donation . 320000
Contract Services :
Actounding Foes 1,281.85
Grant Writing Fees 350.00 ~
Qutside Contract Services S060.00
Totai Contract Serelzes 213495
Facilllles and Bqulpment
Dopr antt Amort - Aflowabie L¥70.55
Rent, Packing, (Hites 1,027.3%
Tutal Faclities and Equipmens 9,587.94 .
. Operations T . '
Internet 878,40
Pastage, Meliing Service 182,459
Printing and Copyin ] pricl
Supplies : 10570
Tetephono, Tc!ocummuuicalloqs 189427
Wabslie 7891
Tolat Operations 286705
. ; Oltyer Types of Expenses
Hank Fegs 44,50
Filing and othar Faes 130,00
- Insurance - Usbliley, B end 0 320600 ’
Other Casts 500
Total Ciher Types of Expenses - 345580
Pagroll Expenses
Health hsurance 341180
Payeoll proceasing fees : 52500
Payroll Taxes . 234810
Salarfes : . 3451550
Totat Payroll Expanacs . ' 44,001,40
Sponcorship 13,450.00 .
Traveland Meetings ’ A
Business Muoals . ' 45480
Conference, Convention, Mewting 1,600.60 . ,
. Travel ) : . 54 .
ol Travel s Mheetings o AL
Folal Exponse ‘ . ] 217,390.88
Net Ordinary Incoma ] . : . B520380 .
Other IncomeiExpense
Other Expense S .
.- AskMyAccountant - . o . 50893
Totnl Other Expanse : o 50933
Net Other lndome. B PP 50323
Natlacome S o T aamesy

) --:_'5'43_-



8:08 Al
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Accrual Basis

ABSETS

Current Assets
CheeliingiSavings
Wells Fargo
* Wells Fargo Savings
Total Checking/Savings

- Total Current Assefs

Fixed Assetg )
Furniture and Equipment

Accumiated Depreciation
Furplture and Eguipment - Other

Total Futrniture and Equipment

Total Fixed Assets .

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & FQUITY

. LizbHities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

T Accounts Payahle

Total Accounts Payahie

Credlt Cards

Visa Credit Card GBI

Tata_t Credit Cards

Total Current Liahilities

Total Liabllities

Equity

Net lneome
Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Fillmore Jazz District Community

Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2007

3
Dec 31, 07

28,350.95
" 80,579,32.

et ———
108,830.27
ﬁﬁMm

108,930.27

~7.770.55
777058
R e
a.a0

0.00
mﬁﬂﬂ"ﬂmm

108,930.27
m———-m_,..-"‘"_,

24,145,60
24,145.60

2414560
T Stk

24,145.60

84,784.67
84,784.67
A —TTT s

108,830.27
PV At oo i
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‘Michael A. Sulpizio
Certified Public. Accountant
1419 Burlingame Ave, 2" Floor
Burlingame, CA 94010

June 30, 2008

Board of Directors .

Fillmore Jazz District Community Association of San F rancisco
1410 Turk Strest - '

San Francisco, CA 94115 _

1 have reviewed the accompanying statement of financial position of the F illmore Jazz District
‘Cominunity Association of San Francisco (a not-for-profit organization), as of December 31,
2007, and the related . statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, in
. accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. All information included in these financial
statements is the representation of fhe management of the Fillmore Jazz District Community
Association of San Francisco. - -

A- review consists principally of inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures
“applied to financial data, Tt is substantially less in scope than an audit in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion
. regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, I do not express such an
opinion. '

Based on my review, [ am not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the .
accompanying financial stafements in order for them to be in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

A

Michael A. Siulpizi{ ' /

1
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Fillmore Jazz District Community Ass_oéiation of San Frangcisco
' Statements of Financial Position
December 31,2007

- Assets: : , :
Cash and cash equivalents $108,930 -
- Furniture & equipment 7.771
‘' Total assets: . 116,701

- Liabilities and net assets: -

I

& .
};—d
af

18 3}

Accounts payable 5

Total liabilities: ‘ ‘ 24.146
Net assets: :

Unrestricted 92,555

Temporarily restricted ‘ 0

Permanently restricted 0
- Total net assets: ' 92.555
Total liabilities and net assets: 16,701

SN

The accompanymg notes are an mtcgral paﬂ of these ﬁnanc;tal statements . L

See the accompanymg accountant § report '



Fillmore Jazz District Community Association of San Francisco
Staternent of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2007

Revenues, gains, and other support:

Property assessments : - $300,951
~ Other investment income - 1,733
Total unrestricted revenues: 302,684
Expenses: . ‘
Holiday street hghts _ : 16,320
Street cleaning | o 116,390
Charitable donations - 3,200
Contract services ‘ ‘ 2,132
Liability insurance - 3,206
Health insurance . 3,812
Salaries : 34,616
Payroll taxes : . : 2,049
Travel & meetings expense . ‘ : 7,177
- Bponsorship- _ ‘ 13,350
Other operating expense , ‘ 6,977
Total Expenses: : 210.129
Increase in unrestricted net assets: - 92,555 -
Increase in net asgets: _ ‘ 4 07,555
. Net assets at beginning of year: Q
" Net assets at end of year: $92,555

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
- See the accompanying accountant’s report.

553

- page 2 of 4 -



Fillmore Jazz District Community Association of San Francisco
I Notes to financial statements
- Year Ended December 31, 2007

. The Fillmore Jazz District Community Association of San Francisco is a Community

Benefit District that was authorized on August 15, 2006 by the San Francisco Board of

Supervisors. : : ‘

- Funding is provided by special assessments levied on properties located within the

district, ' L

. The district has a five-year term.

. The association became incorporated in the state of California on Jamary 31, 2007 as a
nonprofit public benefit corporation. Funding was provided for the association during

2007. : '

54
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Fillmore Jazz District Community Assotiation of San Francisco
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2007

3

.Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from property assessments " $300,951

Interest and dividends received ‘ 1,733

Cash paid to employees and vendors © . {185,983)
Net cash provided by operating activities: 116,701
Cash flows from investing activities: '

Acquisition of capital assets | - (7,711

Net cash used by investing activities: 7.771
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year; 4]
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year: $108,930

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
See the accompanying accountant’s report. :

]
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